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   District of North Vancouver 
355 West Queens Road, 

North Vancouver, BC, Canada V7N 4N5 
604-990-2311 
www.dnv.org 

 

 
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

 
7:00 p.m. 

Monday, February 4, 2013 
Council Chamber, Municipal Hall, 

355 West Queens Road, North Vancouver 
 
 

AGENDA 
BROADCAST OF MEETING 
 

 Live broadcast on Shaw channel 4 

 Rebroadcast on Shaw channel 4 at 9:00 a.m. Saturday 

 Online at www.dnv.org 
 
CLOSED PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS NOT AVAILABLE FOR DISCUSSION 

 

 Bylaw 7954 – Rezoning Lot B – Barrow Street/Lynnwood 

 Bylaw 7969 – 2635-2695 Mountain Highway   
 
1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

1.1. February 4, 2013 Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

Recommendation: 
THAT the agenda for the February 4, 2013 Regular Meeting of Council for the 
District of North Vancouver be adopted as circulated, including the addition of any 
items listed in the agenda addendum. 

 
2. PUBLIC INPUT 
 

(limit of two minutes per speaker to a maximum of thirty minutes total) 
 
3. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
4. RECOGNITIONS 
 
5. DELEGATIONS 
 
6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

6.1. January 14, 2013 Council Workshop  p. 9 - 11
 

Recommendation: 
THAT the minutes of the January 14, 2013 Council Workshop be received. 
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6.2. January 21, 2013 Regular Council Meeting p. 13 - 17
 

Recommendation: 
THAT the minutes of the January 21, 2013 Regular Council meeting be adopted. 

 
6.3. January 22, 2013 Public Hearing p. 19 - 22

 
Recommendation: 
THAT the minutes of the January 22, 2013 Public Hearing be received. 

 
7. RELEASE OF CLOSED MEETING DECISIONS 
 
8. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL OR STAFF 
 

With the consent of Council, any member may request an item be added to the Consent 
Agenda to be approved without debate. 
 
If a member of the public signs up to speak to an item, it shall be excluded from the 
Consent Agenda. 
 
*Staff suggestion for consent agenda. 

 
Recommendation: 
THAT items     be included in the Consent Agenda and be 
approved without debate. 

 
8.1. Results of Alternative Approval Process for Bylaw 7970 -  p. 25 - 29

2670 Lloyd Avenue 
File No. 01.0115.30/002.000 

 
Recommendation: 
THAT the report from the Municipal Clerk entitled “Results of Alternative Approval 
Process for Bylaw 7970 – 2670 Lloyd Avenue” and dated January 29th, 2013 be 
received for information.   

 
8.2. Bylaw 7969: 2635-2695 Mountain Highway Rezoning p. 31 - 37

File No. 09.3900.01/000.000 
 

Recommendation: 
THAT “The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 (Bylaw 7969)” is given 
SECOND and THIRD reading.   

 
8.3. Development Permit 67.12 – Seylynn Village [Phase 1 – Building “C”] p. 39 - 75

File No. 08.3060.20/067.12 
 

Recommendation: 
THAT Development Permit 67.12 for a 24 storey residential building at Seylynn 
Village, be ISSUED.   

 
 
 

* 
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8.4. Development Permit 10.12: 1551 Pemberton Avenue p. 77 - 100
Mixed Commercial Residential Building 
File No. 08.3060.20/010.12 

 
Recommendation: 
THAT Development Permit 10.12 for a four storey mixed use building at 1551 
Pemberton Avenue, be ISSUED.   

 
8.5. Bylaw 7975: Development Servicing Bylaw Amendment – p. 101 - 105

Road Classification 
File No. 16.8620.20/041.000 

 
Recommendation: 
THAT “Development Servicing Bylaw 7388, 2005, Amendment Bylaw 7975, 2012 
(Amendment 4)” is given FIRST, SECOND, and THIRD reading.   
 

8.6. Core Funding/Operating Support Grants for Arts Organizations:  p. 107 - 129
Release of First Instalment on 2013 Grant 
File No. 10.4794.90/001.000 

 
Recommendation: 
THAT the four recognized, core-funded arts organizations be approved to receive a 
first instalment on their 2013 Core Funding/Operating Support Grants; 
 
AND THAT this first round of 2013 payments, being equivalent to 50% of the groups’ 
2012 grants and totaling $317,492, be approved in accordance with Council policy; 
 
AND THAT the District’s portion of this interim instalment, totalling $148,746 in 
operating grants, be approved for release to the City of North Vancouver; 
 
AND THAT the balance of the 2013 Core Funding/Operating Support grants be 
disbursed in full in June, following Council’s final approval of the budget.   

 
9. REPORTS 

 
9.1. Mayor 

 
9.2. Chief Administrative Officer 

 
9.3. Councillors 

 
9.4. Metro Vancouver Committee Appointees 

 
10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 
11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Recommendation: 
THAT the February 4, 2013 Regular Meeting of Council for the District of North 
Vancouver be adjourned. 
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MINUTES 
 

7



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

THIS PAGE LEFT BLANK INTENTIONALLY 
 

8



  

DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
COUNCIL WORKSHOP 

 
Minutes of the Council Workshop of the Council for the District of North Vancouver held at 7:02 
p.m. on Monday, January 14, 2013 in the Committee Room of the District Hall, 355 West 
Queens Road, North Vancouver, British Columbia. 
 
Present: Mayor R. Walton 

Councillor R. Bassam 
Councillor R. Hicks 
Councillor M. Little 
Councillor D. MacKay-Dunn 
Councillor L. Muri 
Councillor A. Nixon 

 
Staff: Mr. G. Joyce, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 
 Mr. L. Carter, Manager – Utilities 

Mr. J. Gordon, Manager – Administrative Services 
Ms. S. Berardo, Confidential Council Clerk  

 
1. Opening by the Mayor 

 
Mayor Walton opened the meeting and welcomed members of the public.  
 

2. 2013 Water Stewardship                                     
File No.  
 
Presentation: Lorn Carter, Manager – Utilities 
 
Mr. Gavin Joyce, Acting Chief Administrative Officer, advised that the purpose of this 
meeting is to educate Council on water consumption, universal water metering and its 
alternatives, and water conservation initiatives.    
  
Mr. Lorn Carter, Manager – Utilities, spoke to the PowerPoint presentation on the “District 
of North Vancouver 2013 Water Stewardship” dated January 14, 2013.  The topics 
covered were: 

 What is water stewardship and who has responsibilities for providing potable 
water; 

 Regional municipal water use and how the District of North Vancouver compares; 

 Water use versus growth for the District of North Vancouver; 

 Current, 2013, and post-2013 potential water conservation initiatives; 

 A status update for lower mainland municipal universal water metering; 

 A summary of the District of North Vancouver’s water metering infrastructure;  

 Actual single family water purchase and sewage handling costs; 

 Potential residential water savings due to universal water metering; 

 Potential residential sewage savings due to universal water metering; 

 Expected current and future cost and savings of a universal water metering 
program; 

 Issues with a universal water metering program;  
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Council Workshop Minutes – January 14, 2013 

 Benefits for collecting water meter data for select groups of single family residents; 
and,  

 Alternative programs to reduce water consumption. 
 

Councillor MURI left the meeting at 7:46 pm and returned at 7:48 pm.   
 
Mr. Carter discussed the benefits and disadvantages of universal water metering.   
 
Benefits include:  

 Primary tool to address equity; 

 Addresses private side leakage; and,   

 Excellent system information.  
 
 Disadvantages include:  

 Average resident will pay more than they currently are;  

 Requires a change of habit for residents to achieve success;  

 Currently a cost/benefit loser;  

 Permanent expensive infrastructure and system; and,  

 Causes carbon dioxide footprint to implement.  
 
Mr. Carter summarized the presentation stating:  

 Universal water metering provides equity for billing and excellent water use data; 

 Universal water metering can save resident-side water leakage;  

 Universal water metering is expensive and a cost benefit loser as the average 
resident will pay more than they are now; 

 There are environmental impacts to implement; 

 Existing water conservation programs can cost effectively reduce water demand;  

 Each toilet replacement can permanently reduce consumption without habit 
change; and,  

 Noise loggers are cost beneficial.  
 
Next steps include:  

 Noise Logger pilot program in 2013; 

 Single family residence meter pilot to gain key information in 2013;  

 Expand toilet replacement program in 2014; and,  

 Return to review decision on universal water metering in 2015.  
 
Council questioned how water meters are checked and if this was costly?  Staff advised 
that these meters are meant to be fairly maintenance free.   
 
Council suggested metering residents with pools on their properties.  Staff noted that 
residents with pools are charged a one-time flat rate.   
 
Council questioned if a ten percent water reduction is possible without metering?  Staff 
advised that with programs such as toilet rebates, noise loggers, and educating the public, 
this is achievable.  It was also noted that a ten percent water reduction equates to a 
savings of $1.235 million a year.     
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Council Workshop Minutes – January 14, 2013 

Council commented on the beneficial effects of using social media as a tool to educate the 
public.   
 
Council agreed to focus on the toilet rebate program.   

 
Public Input: 
 
Mr. Corrie Kost: 

 Noted that universal water metering has an “anti-family” connotation; 

 Mentioned that the slope of the pipes may affect the quality of low flush toilets; 
and, 

 Noted that Britain has started to withdraw from water metering. 
 
3. Adjournment 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:08 pm.  
 
 
 

 
 

        
Confidential Council Clerk 
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DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
REGULAR MEETING OF COUNCIL 

 
Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Council for the District of North Vancouver held at 7:06 
p.m. on Monday, January 21, 2013 in the Council Chamber of the District Hall, 355 West 
Queens Road, North Vancouver, British Columbia. 
 
Present: Mayor R. Walton 

Councillor R. Bassam 
Councillor R. Hicks 
Councillor M. Little 
Councillor D. MacKay-Dunn 
Councillor L. Muri 
Councillor A. Nixon (7:07 pm) 

 
Staff: Mr. G. Joyce, Acting Chief Administrative Officer 

Mr. B. Bydwell, General Manager – Planning, Properties & Permits 
Mr. J. Gordon, Manager – Administrative Services 
Ms. C. Grant, Manager – Corporate Planning & Projects 
Mr. S. Ono, Manager – Engineering Services 
Ms. E. Geddes, Section Manager – Transportation  
Ms. J.  Paton, Section Manager – Development Planning 
Ms. L. Brick, Confidential Council Clerk 
Ms. L. Simkin, Administrative & Information and Privacy Coordinator 

 
1. ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 
 

1.1. January 21, 2013 Regular Meeting Agenda 
 

MOVED by Councillor LITTLE 
SECONDED by Councillor MACKAY-DUNN 
THAT the agenda for the January 21, 2013 Regular Meeting of Council for the 
District of North Vancouver be adopted as circulated, including the addition of 
any items listed in the agenda addendum. 

 
 CARRIED  

Absent for Vote: Councillor NIXON 
 

2. PUBLIC INPUT 
 

Councillor Nixon arrived at this point in the proceedings. 
 

2.1  Mr. Sean Weins, Pemberton Avenue: 

 Spoke in support of the Pemberton Heights Traffic Calming Plan; and, 

 Urged Council to support the proposal. 
 

3. PROCLAMATIONS 
 
Nil 
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Regular Minutes – January 21, 2013 

4. RECOGNITIONS 
 
Nil 
 

5. DELEGATIONS 
 

5.1. Mr. Duncan Wilson, Port Metro Vancouver  
Re: Update on Port Metro Vancouver operations in general and  
specific to the North Shore 
 
Mr. Duncan Wilson, Vice President, Corporate Social Responsibility, Port Metro 
Vancouver, provided an overview of the upcoming Port projects, plans, and 
initiatives. Mr. Wilson commented on the Lower Lynn Town Centre development 
project, noting it would be beneficial for the District and Port Metro Vancouver to 
work together to develop and implement proactive mitigation measures to 
address industrial noise in transition areas in the new town centres.  
  
MOVED by Councillor LITTLE 
SECONDED by Councillor MURI 
THAT the delegation of Mr. Duncan Wilson, Port Metro Vancouver be received 
for information.  
 

 CARRIED  
 

5.2. Dr. Arthur Fallick & Dr. Kent Mullinix, Kwantlen   
Polytechnic University 
Re: South West BC Food System Design & Implementation Plan 
 
Dr. Kent Mullinix provided an overview of the South West BC Food System 
Design and Implementation Plan. Dr. Mullinix requested endorsement of the 
project, a staff liaison to the committee, and a funding commitment. 
 

Councillor MURI left the meeting at 8:13 and returned at 8:16 pm. 
 
Council requested that staff report back regarding endorsement of the project, 
funding options, and staff liaison opportunities, and that it include input or 
comment from Metro Vancouver.  
 
MOVED by Councillor NIXON 
SECONDED by Councillor HICKS 
THAT the delegation of Dr. Kent Mullinix, Kwantlen Polytechnic University be 
received for information.  
 

 CARRIED 
 Absent for Vote: Councillor MURI 

 
6. ADOPTION OF MINUTES 
 

6.1. January 7, 2013 Regular Council Meeting  
 

MOVED by Councillor NIXON 
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Regular Minutes – January 21, 2013 

SECONDED by Councillor MACKAY-DUNN 
THAT the minutes of the January 7, 2013 Regular Council meeting be adopted. 
 

 CARRIED  
 

7. RELEASE OF CLOSED MEETING DECISIONS 
 

Nil 
 

8. REPORTS FROM COUNCIL OR STAFF 
 

MOVED by Councillor BASSAM 
SECONDED by Councillor MURI 
THAT items 8.1 and 8.4 be included in the Consent Agenda and be approved 
without debate. 

 
 CARRIED  
 

8.1. Bylaw 7883: District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1265  
Argyle – 1131 Frederick Road 
File No. 09.3900.01/000.000 
 
MOVED by Councillor BASSAM 
SECONDED by Councillor MURI 
THAT District of North Vancouver “Rezoning Bylaw 1265” (Bylaw 7883) is 
ADOPTED. 
 

 CARRIED  
 

8.2. Bylaw 7962: Rezoning of Land at 2151 Front Street and  
2011 Old Dollarton for a Mixed Commercial/Residential Project 
File No. 08.3060.20/086.11 
 
Public Input: 
Mr. Geoff Heu, 600 Block West Georgia Street: 

 Spoke in support of the project on behalf of the applicant, Great West Life; 

 Confirmed that there is space available above the restaurant which can be 
converted to additional uses; 

 Commented on the strategy for developing rental units in the area; and, 

 Commented on rental rates of the units. 
 
MOVED by Councillor MURI 
SECONDED by Councillor MACKAY-DUNN  
THAT Bylaw 7962, Rezoning Bylaw 1287, rezoning the properties at 2011 Old 
Dollarton Road and 2151 Front Street to CD68 in order to permit a mixed 
commercial/residential project, is given FIRST reading;  
 
AND THAT Bylaw 7962, Rezoning Bylaw 1287, be referred to a Public Hearing. 
 

 CARRIED  
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8.3. Pemberton Heights Traffic Calming Plan  

File No. 11.5460.83/002.000 
 
Ms. Erica Geddes, Section Manager – Transportation, provided an overview of 
the proposed traffic calming plan for the Pemberton Heights area highlighting that 
the plan could be built in the summer of 2013 and is fully funded.  
 
MOVED by Councillor NIXON 
SECONDED by Councillor BASSAM 
THAT staff be directed to implement the traffic calming measures for West Keith 
Road and West 22nd Street as outlined in the report of the Supervisor – 
Transportation Engineering dated January 3, 2013.  
 

 CARRIED  
 

8.4. GVRD Mosquito Control Administration and Coordination 
Service Repeal Bylaw 
File No. 01.0115.30/002.000 

 
MOVED by Councillor BASSAM 
SECONDED by Councillor MURI 
THAT the Council of the District of North Vancouver consents to the repeal of the 
Greater Vancouver Regional District Mosquito Control Administration and 
Coordination Service Establishment Bylaw No. 1034, 2005 and consents to the 
adoption of the Greater Vancouver Regional District Bylaw to Repeal the 
Mosquito Control Administration and Coordination Service (Bylaw No. 1179, 
2012). 

 
 CARRIED  

 
9. REPORTS 

 
9.1. Mayor 

 
Nil 
 

9.2. Chief Administrative Officer 
 
Nil 
 

9.3. Councillors 
 

9.3.1 Councillor Hicks reported on his recent tour of a Turning Point recovery 
facility. 

 
9.4. Metro Vancouver Committee Appointees 

 
Nil 
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10. ANY OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Nil 
 

11. ADJOURNMENT 
 

MOVED by Councillor BASSAM 
SECONDED by Councillor MURI 
THAT the January 21, 2013 Regular Meeting of Council for the District of North 
Vancouver be adjourned. 
 

 CARRIED 
 (9:12 pm)  
 
 
 

 
 

              
Mayor       Municipal Clerk 
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DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 
PUBLIC HEARING 

 
REPORT of the Public Hearing held in the Council Chamber of the District Municipal Hall, 355 
West Queens Road, North Vancouver, B.C. on Tuesday, January 22, 2013 commencing at 7:09 
p.m. 
 
Present: Mayor R. Walton 

Councillor M. Little 
  Councillor L. Muri 
  Councillor A. Nixon  
 
Absent:  Councillor R. Bassam 

Councillor R. Hicks 
  Councillor D. Mackay-Dunn 
   
Staff: Ms. B. Bydwell, General Manager – Planning, Properties, and Permits 
 Mr. J. Gordon, Municipal Clerk  

Ms. J. Paton, Section Manager – Development Planning 
 Ms. T. Guppy, Planner 
 Ms. S. Berardo, Confidential Council Clerk 

  

 
Bylaw 7969  The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 
 
Purpose: Bylaw 7969 will permit a one hundred and eight unit residential complex 

consisting of two apartment buildings, one of four storeys in height and the 
second, five storeys in height.           

 

 
1. OPENING BY THE MAYOR 
 

Mayor Walton welcomed everyone and advised that the purpose of the Public Hearing is 
to receive input from the community on the proposed amendments to the Zoning Bylaw 
as outlined in the notice of Public Hearing.  He also informed those in attendance of the 
procedural rules that will be followed.  

 
2. INTRODUCTION OF BYLAW BY CLERK 
 

Mr. James Gordon, Municipal Clerk, introduced the proposed bylaw. 
 
3. PRESENTATION BY STAFF 
 

Presentation: Tamsin Guppy, Planner 
 
Ms. Tamsin Guppy, Planner, presented the proposal for a one hundred and eight unit 
residential complex consisting of two apartment buildings, one of four storeys in height 
and the second, five storeys in height.   
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Public Hearing – January 22, 2013 

 

Ms. Guppy advised that: 

 The project is in keeping with the Official Community Plan; 

 The proposed residential complex presents a strong design that will enhance the 
entrance to the Lynn Valley Town Centre; 

 It will create more opportunities for both first time buyers and families who cannot 
afford single family or town house units; 

 Public art is a required part of the community amenity package; and,  

 A parking rate of 1.5 spaces per unit is required.   
 
4. PRESENTATION BY APPLICANT 
 

Presentation: Mr. Hugh Ker  
 
The applicants thanked staff for providing a detailed overview of the proposed 
development and drew attention to the following points: 

 Provided a history of the proposal; 

 Mentioned that Polygon is finalizing the Community Amenity Contributions; 

 Acknowledged unit sizes are smaller to address affordability; 

 Noted that there are an increased number of adaptable homes to meet the bylaw 
requirements; and,  

 Commented that Polygon has a corporate policy in which they will revise the 
layout of the unit if the owner comes forward with special needs. 

 
 Mr. Ker spoke further addressing: 

 Design principals; 

 Shadow analysis; 

 Four storey streetscape; 

 Entrance lobby; 

 Five storey streetscape; 

 Gateway features; and, 

 East streetscape elevation.   
 
5. REPRESENTATIONS FROM THE PUBLIC 
 
 5.1  Ms. Jan Hills, 1600 Block Alderlynn Drive                                          OPPOSED 

 Spoke in opposition to the project; 

 Expressed concern in regard to density; 

 Expressed concern in regard to increased traffic congestion; and, 

 Stated that Lynn Valley does not have the facilities to accommodate growth.   
 

5.2  Ms. Susan Hubber, 1200 Block Barlynn Crescent                     COMMENTING 
 Expressed concern with public transportation in the area; 

 Questioned whether TransLink has an intention to improve the 210 bus route; 

 Questioned the proposed price range of these units; and, 

 Questioned what protocols will be in place during the construction of the 
development, specifically with regard to containing traffic congestion.   
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5.3  Ms. Liz Barnett, 3100 Block Mountain Highway                            IN FAVOUR 
 Advised that she works with individuals who have a disability and 

commended the developers for the accessibility aspects of the proposed 
development; and, 

 Supports the development of more affordable living units on the North Shore. 
 

 
5.4  Mr. Hazen Colbert, 1100 Block East 27th Street                 IN FAVOUR 

 Spoke in support of the development; 

 Commented that the proposed development fits well within the community; 

 Expressed concern with regards to shadowing; 

 Noted that affordable housing needs to be addressed; 

 Commented that parking will be a problem; 

 Commented that parking restrictions on 27th Street and Mountain Highway 
will be essential; and,  

 Stated that public transit is a problem regardless of whether this project goes 
through.   
 

5.5  Ms. Jan Hills, 1600 Block Alderlynn Drive                                  SECOND TIME 
 Requested that Council contact the Ministry of Transportation.   

 
5.6  Mr. Dan Ellis, 900 Block Hendecourt Road             COMMENTING 

 Urged Council to eliminate the boulevard reservation on the east side of 
Mountain Highway.   
 

6. QUESTIONS FROM COUNCIL 
 

Council queried the proposed price point for the units.  The developer advised that a one 
bedroom unit would start in the low $300,000 price range.   
 
Council queried the average unit size.   The developer advised that the average unit size 
is 800 square feet.   
 
Council questioned what Polygon plans to do with unused parking spaces.  The 
developer advised that Polygon has committed to turning over the unsold parking 
spaces to the Strata Corporation to ensure that all parking constructed is available for 
use.   
 
The developer advised Council that the proposed development will be built in one phase.   
 
Council queried what restrictions would be in place to eliminate road closures during 
construction.  Staff advised that a construction management plan would be required that 
includes a robust communication plan with the community.   

 
7. COUNCIL RESOLUTION 
 

MOVED by Councillor MURI 
SECONDED by Councillor LITTLE 
THAT the January 22, 2013 Public Hearing be closed; 
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AND THAT Bylaw 7969 “The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288”, be 
returned to Council for further consideration. 
 

CARRIED 
 
8. CLOSING 
 

Mayor Walton declared the Public Hearing in respect to Bylaw 7969 CLOSED at 8:01 
p.m. 

 
CERTIFIED CORRECT:  

 
 
 
 

________________________ 
Confidential Council Clerk 
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COUNCIL AGENDA/INFORMATION 

0 In Camera Date: Item# 

(5f Regular Date: Fel··u.~ t LJ Item # 

0 Agenda Addendum Date: Item# 

0 Info Package 
0 Council Workshop DM# Date: Mailbox: 

The District of North Vancouver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

January 29, 2013 
File: 01.0115.30/002.000 
Tracking Number: RCA-

AUTHOR: James Gordon, Municipal Clerk 

Director 

SUBJECT: Results of Alternative Approval Process for Bylaw 7970 - 2670 Lloyd 
Avenue 

RECOMMENDATION: 
THAT the report from the Municipal Clerk entitled "Results of Alternative Approval Process 
for Bylaw 7970-2670 Lloyd Avenue" and dated January 29th, 2013 be received for 
information. 

REASON FOR REPORT: 
The reason for this report is to provide Council with the results of the alterative approval 
process (AAP) for Bylaw 7970 and to outline the next steps. 

BACKGROUND: 
On December 1ih, 2012 Council gave third reading as amended to Park Purposes 
Amendment Bylaw 7970, 2012 and directed staff to obtain approval of the electors by means 
of an alternative approval process. Following notice in the North Shore News on December 
14 and 21 , the AAP ran until the deadline of 4:00pm, Monday, January 28. The Municipal 
Clerk is then required to certify whether or not the approval of the electors has been obtained 
based on the submissions received. 

RESULTS: 
By the deadline the District had received 176 valid elector response forms. This is below the 
threshold of 10% of eligible voters required to prevent Council from proceeding with bylaw 
7970. Attached , therefore, is certification that approval of the electors has been obtained and 
that Council may proceed with bylaw 7970. 

TIMING/APPROVAL PROCESS: 
Having now obtained the approval of the electors, bylaw 7970 is ready for adoption. It is the 
desire of the Planning staff, however, to postpone adoption until it can be done concurrently 
with the adoption of an associated rezoning bylaw, a process which may now commence 

Document: 2016564 25

8.1



SUBJECT: Results of Alternative Approval Process for Bylaw 7970-2670 Lloyd 
Avenue 

January 29, 2013 Page 2 

given the successful completion of the AAP for bylaw 7970. It is anticipated that both bylaws 
will be ready for adoption in early May 2013. 

OPTIONS: 
At this point there are two options available to Council: 

1. Receive this report for information and postpone adoption of bylaw 7970 until such 
time as it can be adopted concurrently with the associated rezoning bylaw; or, 

2. Adopt the bylaw now in which case the following resolution would be in order: 

"THAT Park Purposes Amendment Bylaw 7970, 2012 is adopted ." 

Respectfully submitted , 

James Gordon 
Municipal Clerk 

Attachments: 1. Park Purposes Amendment Bylaw 7970, 2012 

REVIEWED WITH: 

0 Sustainable Community 
Development 

0 Development Services 

0 Utilities 

0 Engineering Operations 
0 Parks & Environment 

2. Certification 

REVIEWED WITH: 

0 Clerk's Office 
0 Corporate Services 

0 Communications 

0 Finance 

0 Fire Services 
0 Human resources 

0 Economic Development 0 ITS 
0 Solicitor 
OGIS 

REVIEWED WITH: 

External Agencies: 
0 Library Board 

0 NS Health 

ORCMP 

0 Recreation Commission 
0 Other: 

REVIEWED WITH: 

Advisory Committees: 
0 
0 ---------------4 

0 
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The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver 

Bylaw7970 

A bylaw to amend bylaw 3957 

The Council for The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver enacts as follows: 

1. Citation 

This bylaw may be cited as "Park Purposes Amendment Bylaw 7970, 2012". 

2. Amendment of Bylaw 3957 

The requirement in "Land Purchase Bylaw 3, 1969 (Bylaw 3957)" to hold for park 
purposes that portion of Amended Lot 2 (Reference Plan 2935), Block C, District 
Lots 598 to 601 , Plan 6659 comprising 2,400 square meters, more or less, shown 
outlined in red on the Plan attached to this bylaw as Attachment "A" is hereby 
removed, and Bylaw 3957 is hereby amended accordingly. 

READ a first time this the 3rd day of December, 2012 

READ a second time this the 3rd day of December, 2012 

READ a third time this the 3rd day of December, 2012 

THIRD READING RESCINDED on this the 12th day of December, 2012 

READ a third time as amended this the 1 ih day of December, 2012 

ELECTOR APPROVAL OBTAINED on this the 

ADOPTED this the 

Mayor Municipal Clerk 

Certified a true copy 

Municipal Clerk 
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District of North Vancouver 

Alternative Approval Process 

Park Purposes Amendment Bylaw 7970, 2012 

CERTIFICATION 

Given that: 

1. Notice of the alternative approval process was published in accordance with 
the requirements of the Community Charter, 

2. Electors of the District of North Vancouver were provided with an opportunity 
to indicate that council may not proceed with the bylaw unless it is approved 
by assent of the electors; 

3. The number of valid Elector Response Forms required from at least 10% of 
the electors of the District of North Vancouver is 6,045; and, 

4. The number of valid Elector Response Forms received by the Municipal Clerk 
for the District of North Vancouver before the deadline of 4:00pm on Monday, 
January 28, 2013 was 176; 

I, James A. Gordon, Municipal Clerk for the District of North Vancouver, hereby 
declare that the approval of the electors has been obtained . 
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COUNCIL AGENDA/INFORMATION 

0 In Camera Date: Item # 

ttl Regular Date:~ ~6 ,;l-o\3 Item # 

0 Agenda Addendum Date: Item# 

0 Info Package 

0 Council Workshop DM# Date: Mailbox: 

The District of North Vancouver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

January 25, 2012 
File: 09.3900.01/000.000 

AUTHOR: Natasha Letchford , Deputy Municipal Clerk 

SUBJECT: Bylaw 7969: 2635-2695 Mountain Highway Rezoning 

RECOMMENDATION: 

THAT "The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 (Bylaw 7969)" is given 
SECOND and THIRD reading. 

BACKGROUND: 

"The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 (Bylaw 7969)" received first reading 
and was referred to a Public Hearing on December 3, 2012. A Public Hearing was held on 
January 22, 2013. Planning is expecting to bring this Bylaw forward for adoption on February 
18, 2013 following the applicant's satisfaction of the rezoning requirements. 

Options: 

1. Provide second and thi rd reading ; 
2. Provide second reading only; 
3. Return the bylaw to a Public Hearing; or, 
4. Abandon the bylaw at 1st reading. 

Respectfully submitted , 

CVl-
Natasha Letchford 
Deputy Municipal Clerk 

Attachment: "The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 (Bylaw 7969)" 
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The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver 

Bylaw7969 

A bylaw to amend The District of North Vancouver Zoning Bylaw (321 0) to rezone 2635-
2695 Mountain Highway (3060-20-41 .12) 

The Council for The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver enacts as follows: 

1. Citation 

This bylaw may be cited as "The District of North Vancouver Rezoning Bylaw 1288 
(Bylaw 7969)". 

2. Amendments 

1. The following amendments are made to the "District of North Vancouver Zoning 
Bylaw 1965": 

a) Section 301 (2) by inserting the following zoning designation: 

"Comprehensive Development Zone 69 CD69 Bylaw 7969" 

b) Part 2 A - amend as follows: 

Definitions Applicable to the Employment Zones, Village Commercial Zones 
and Comprehensive Development Zone 69 

(Sections CD69, 600-A, 600-B, 750, 770) 

The following definitions apply in the Employment Zones, Village Commercial Zones 
and Comprehensive Development 69 (Sections CD69, 600-A, 600-B, 750, 770) only: 

c) Part 4B, inserting Schedule A. 

d) The Zoning Map is amended in the case of the lands legally described as: 

2635 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 1, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 758 
(PID 005-823-676) 
2637 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 2, District Lot 2022, Group, Strata Plan VR 758 
(PID 005-823-684) 
2645 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 1, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 759 
(PID 005-824-753) 
2647 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 2, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 759 
(PID 005-824-788) 
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2653 Mountain Highway, Lot 17, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 12301 
(PID 008-066-914) 
2661 Mountain Highway, Lot 3, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 12740 (PID 
006-738-982) 
2669 Mountain Highway, Lot 1, Block 33, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 11271 (PID 
009-218-459) 
2675/2679 Mountain Highway, Lot 6, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 13960 
(PID 007-461-437) 
2691 /2695 Mountain Highway, Lot 5, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 13960 
(PID 007-986-904) 

as illustrated on Schedule B by rezoning the land from Multi Family Zones (RM2 and 
RM3) to Comprehensive Development Zone (CD69). 

READ a first time this the 3rd day of December, 2012 

PUBLIC HEARING held the 22"d day of January, 2013 

READ a second time the 

READ a third time the 

ADOPTED this the 

Mayor Municipal Clerk 

Certified a true copy 

Municipal Clerk 
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Schedule A to Bylaw 7969 

48420 Comprehensive Development Zone 69 CD69 

The CD 69 Zone is applied to: 
2635 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 1, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 758 
(PID 005-823-676) 
2637 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 2, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 758 
(PID 005-823-684) 
2645 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 1, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 759 
(PID 005-824-753) 
2647 Mountain Highway, Strata Lot 2, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Strata Plan VR 759 
(PID 005-824-788) 
2653 Mountain Highway, Lot 17, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 12301 (PID 
008-066-914) 
2661 Mountain Highway, Lot 3, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 12740 (PID 
006-738-982) 
2669 Mountain Highway, Lot 1, Block 33, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 11271 (PID 
009-218-459) 
2675/2679 Mountain Highway, Lot 6, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 13960 
(PID 007-461-437) 
2691/2695 Mountain Highway, Lot 5, Block W, District Lot 2022, Group 1, Plan 13960 
(PID 007-986-904) 

48421 Intent 

The purpose of the CD69 Zone is to permit low density 
apartments, with a building form that includes 4 and 5 
storey residential buildings. 

48422 Permitted Uses 

The following principal uses shall be permitted in the 
CD69 Zone: 

a) Uses Permitted without conditions: 
residential use. 

b) The following principal uses are permitted when the conditions outlined in section 
4B423 Conditions of Use are met: 
Not applicable. 

48423 Conditions of Use 

Not applicable. 

Document: 1957441 

34



48424 Accessory Use 

a) Home occupations are permitted in residential dwelling units in this zone. 

48425 Density 

a) The maximum permitted density in the CD69 Zone is limited to a floor space ratio 
(FSR) of 0.6 FSR. 

b) For the purposes of calculating floor area ratio the following areas are exempted: 

i. Amenity space and lounge up to 117m2 (1,260 square feet); and 
ii. Underground parking and underground storage areas. 

48426 Amenities: 

Despite Subsection 48425 , density in the CD69 Zone is increased to a maximum floor 
space ratio of 1.96 and a total of 108 units if $983,575 is contributed to the municipality to 
be used for the following amenities in Lynn Valley (with allocation to be determined by the 
municipality in its sole discretion): 

a) Public Art; 
b) Hastings Creek Watershed Environmental Enhancements; 

c) Community arts, cultural features and facilities ; 
d) Child and adult daycare facility; 
e) A network of interconnected public gathering places (including urban plazas, pocket 

parks and pedestrian pathways); 

f) Parks, trails and paths; 
g) Community multi-purpose services and facilities including a youth and senior's 

centre; 

h) Recreation facilities and services; 
i) Public community and public rooftop gardens; 
j) Affordable and non-market rental housing; 
k) Restoration of heritage features; 
Or other community projects as identified . 

48 427 Maximum Principal Building Size 

Not applicable. 

48 428 Setbacks 

a) From all Streets to building face: A minimum setback of 4 .6 m (15.0 feet); 

b) Rear (west) Yard to building face: A minimum setback of 5.5 m (18 0 feet). 
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4B 429 Building Orientation 

Not applicable. 

4B 430 Building Depth and Width 

a) Building Depth: not applicable. 
b) Building Width: not applicable. 

4B431 Coverage 

a) Building Coverage: maximum: 50%. 
b) Site Coverage: maximum: 55%. 

4B 432 Height 

a) The maximum building height is 19.2 m (63 feet). 

4B 433 Landscaping 

a) All setback areas shall either be landscaped or hard surfaced in accordance with an 
approved landscape plan; 

b) All garbage and recycling container pads above grade shall be screened by with a 
2m (6.5ft.) high screen consisting of a solid wood fence, landscaping or a 
combi11ation thereof; and 

c) All electrical kiosks not located underground or within a building shall be screened 
with landscaping. 

4B 434 Subdivision 

Not applicable. 

4B 435 Parking, Loading and Bicycle Parking Regulations: 

Parking and loading shall be provided in accordance with Part 10 of the Zoning Bylaw 
except that: 

a) Parking shall be provided on the basis of 1.5 cars per unit. 
b) Bicycle storage for residents shall be provided on the basis of one space per unit. 
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Schedule B -Zoning Map Bylaw 7969 
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COUNCIL AGENDA/INFORMATION 

0 In Camera Date: Item# 

~Regular Date:~ '{. z.o~ Item# 

0 Date: ' Item# Agenda Addendum 

0 Info Package 

0 Council Workshop DM# Date: Mailbox: 

The District of North Vancouver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

January 23, 2013 
File: 3060-20-67.12 
Tracking Number: RCA -

AUTHOR: Michael Hartford, Community Planner 

SUBJECT: Seylynn Village - Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1 - Building "C"] 

RECOMMENDATION: 

It is recommended that Council issue Development Permit 67.12 for a 24 storey, residential building 
at Seylynn Village. 

REASON FOR REPORT: 

The site is in Development Permit Areas for form and character of commercial and multi-family 
development, for protection of development from creek hazards, and for energy and water 
conservation and greenhouse gas emission reduction. Undertaking the proposed development 
requires issuance of a Development Permit by Council. 

SUMMARY: 

A Development Permit application has been received for 
the "Phase 1" building ("Building C") in the Seylynn 
Village project, located north of Fern Street and east of 
Mountain Highway. The proposal is for a 24 storey 
building (including a four storey podium element) with 
201 dwelling units, located at the south-east corner of 
the site. The building is the first proposed of the multi­
building Seylynn Village comprehensive development 
project. 

Land use on the property is regulated by the CD67 
zoning adopted on December 12, 2012 for the larger 
Seylynn Village project. The project as proposed 
complies with the requirements of the CD67 Zone. 

w 

~ 
l2 z w 
c ... 
(/) 

HUNTERST 

The proposed development helps to implement the re-development objectives for the Lower Lynn 
area and has been reviewed relative to the directions for design guidelines currently in progress for 
the Lower Lynn Town Centre. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 2 

BACKGROUND: 

The overall Seylynn Village development proposal includes construction of four buildings with 
approximately 1,004 m2 (10,800 square feet) of commercial space, 720 market condominium 
apartments and townhouses, 70 affordable rental apartments, a private recreation facility, and a 
232 m2 (2,500 sq. ft.) child-care facility. 

Zoning for the Seylynn Village project was approved by Council in December of 2012. The legal 
framework for the project, including a phased development agreement, housing agreement, and 
development covenant, in conjunction with the CD-67 zoning, set out the developer's rights and 
obligations regarding land use and project amenities at Seylynn Village. 

EXISTING POLICY: 

"Seylynn Village" is designated in the 
District Official Community Plan (OCP) as 
part of the Lower Lynn Town Centre and 
has a designation of "Commercial/ 
Residential Mixed Use Level 3." 

The Seylynn Village site has been 
considered as a comprehensive 
development and the zoning and 
Development Covenant set out a maximum 
aggregate development potential for the 
project, averaged over the total project site 
area. 

The area is designated in development 
permit areas for protection of development 
from creek hazards (arising from the risk of 
flooding), regulation of the form and 
character of commercial , industrial and 
multi-family development, and for Energy 
and Water Conservation and Reduction of 
Greenhouse Gas Emissions. Accordingly, 
all new development is required to attain a 
development permit. 

E KEITH RO 

Development guidelines specific to Seylynn Village were adopted at the time of rezoning of the site. 
These guidelines build on the OCP development permit guidelines for multi-family construction, and 
provide more detail regarding items specific to Seylynn Village. 

Implementation planning work for the Lower Lynn Town Centre is currently underway, and will further 
inform the character of the public realm and open space in the Lower Lynn Town Centre. Additional 
guidelines arising from the implementation planning work will build on the existing OCP and Seylynn 
Village guidelines. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 3 

ANALYSIS: 

Site and Surrounding Area: 

The Seylynn Village property is 
approximately 2.3 hectares (5.7 acres) and is 
located at the east side of Mountain Highway 
and north side of Fern Street. 

Surrounding land uses include Seylynn Park 
to the west across Mountain Highway, with 
Highway One and land for the new E. Keith 
Road extension bordering to the north and 
east. Fern Street borders the south side of 
the property, beyond which is land 
designated for re-development under the 
OCP provisions for Lower Lynn Town 
Centre. 

Land use on the property is regulated by the 
CD67 zoning adopted by Council on 
December 12, 2012 for the larger Seylynn 
Village development. 

Development Site: 

•• ... .. . · .. 

I 
I' 

I ...... 
Of •• , til' ' 

• c 0 ,, 

: ·-J- .. :. r· .. " II(" I""" r ' .... . .. 1 ,. fl .. 

The site of "Building C" is called "Lot 1" and is located at the south-east corner of the Seylynn Village 
development. "Lot 1" is approximately 3845 m2 (0.95 acres) in size. 

The development parcel abuts Fern Street to the south (to be converted to a cul-de-sac) and the 
proposed internal roadway within the development, to the west. The new East Keith Road extension 
will border the east side of the site. North of the "Building C" site is future development comprising 
the proposed 70 unit affordable rental building, child-care, and private recreation facility. 

Development Phasing: 

The Seylynn Village project is large by District 
standards and careful phasing of the project will be 
necessary, particularly to recognize the potential 
impacts on the existing road network and to minimize 
traffic congestion. 

Development of the permanent buildings on the site 
will proceed with the south-east high-rise building, and i 
move generally in an anti-clockwise direction around ' 
the site to the last high-rise building at the south-west 
corner (Fern Street and Mountain Highway). A . , 
conceptual phasing plan is shown adjacent with 
proposed "Building C" as Phase 1. 

'1 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 4 

Proposed Development: 

The development permit application 
has been submitted on behalf of the 
property owner, Seylynn North Shore 
Properties, through their consultants, 
DA Architects and Planning. The 
application proposes a 24 storey 
building, including a four storey 
podium element, with 201 dwelling 
units and comprises the first building 
of the multi-building Seylynn Village 
development. 

"Building C" is highlighted in the 
adjacent view of the overall project. 

The site plan for the Seylynn Village 
development, with the new Keith Road 
Extension wrapping the north side of 

View of project toward the North-east: 

the property and connecting the Keith Road Bridge at the west to the Fern Street interchange at the 
east, is shown in the plan below, with the site of "Building C" in the south-east portion of the Seylynn 
Village development, as highlighted in blue. 

"Building C" includes the following elements: 

• 201 strata dwelling units in a mix of 196 
apartment units and 5 townhouse units 
which will front Fern Street 

• A podium element which includes 
amenity spaces, the townhouse units 
and grade level household storage and 
bicycle parking for the use of residents, 

• Two private amenity spaces totalling 
119 m2 (1281 sq. ft.) 

• A total of 15,735 m2 (169,371 sq. ft.) of 
residential floor area 

• A total of 249 parking spaces in a two­
level underground parking garage 
accessed from the internal road at the 
west side of the site 

• A design which allows for the future 
rental/child-care building to be 
constructed in a future phase to the 
north of the building. 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 5 

Project Review: 

The development permit application for "Building C" at Seylynn Village has been reviewed for 
compliance with the CD-67 zoning, the legal framework regulating the larger project, applicable 
development permit guidelines, and the community plan objectives for Lower Lynn Town Centre. 

Legal Framework for the Project: 

The rezoning process for Seylynn Village included the registration of a Development Covenant at the 
time of adoption of the zoning bylaw. The Development Covenant serves as a "manual for 
development" for Seylynn Village noting the items to be resolved prior to the consideration of District 
approval for construction on the site and providing certainty that the development commitments 
regarding community benefits and amenities will be provided as indicated by the developer. 

The Development Covenant references the following topics: 

(a) Allocation of development rights -to establish the aggregate floor area and dwelling unit 
density limits for all of the lands under consideration, to assign this development to each of 
these lots, and to restrict subdivision to a manner that protects the defined floor area and 
dwelling unit limits; 

(b) Restrictions and controls on subdivision and phasing; 
(c) Requirement for an Engineering Services Agreement (including associated bonding) and 

off site servicing upgrades such as the proposed Keith Road Extension and off-site 
amenity obligations such as the connector trail to Lynnmour School; 

(d) Requirement for a Public Features Agreement to secure the expected on-site features of 
the development such as streetscape improvements on the internal road and the 
landscaped public plaza; 

(e) Minimum and maximum commercial floor area requirements; 
(f) Timing and bonding for the $600,000 public art contribution associated with the project; 
(g) Provision of adaptable design features such that all units will meet Level 2 guidelines (with 

some adjustments to reflect the Seylynn Village development) and a total of 37 units which 
will meet Level 3 guidelines (with 7 of these units built within the rental building); 

(h) Securing child care facilities of at least 232 square metres (2,500 square feet) in the 
development; 

(i) Green Building features to a "LEEDe> Silver" or equivalent level with confirmation of the 
requirement for hydronic (fluid-based) heating systems to allow for future district energy 
opportunities. 

Issuance of a building permit for "Building C" will require registration of additional covenants, as 
guided by and secured through the Development Covenant. 

Development Permit Considerations and Flood Protection: 

The site is within the creek hazard development permit area in relation to risks from flooding. The 
area is in the flood plain for Lynn Creek and in accordance with the recommendations of the flood 
hazard consultant, no habitable space is permitted below grade and all residential floor space is 
required to be built a minimum of 0.6 m (2.0 feet) above the gutter line of adjacent roadways to 
reduce the risk of flood damage. The development guidelines for the area and the site's zoning take 
these building constraints into consideration and the proposed two level underground parking garage 
has been designed to recognize the flood risk. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 6 

A qualified consultant has provided a flood hazard report for the site and the proposed construction. 
The District has reviewed and accepted this report and the building plans as submitted for Building C 
comply with the recommendations of the La Cas Consultants flood assessment report dated 
December 20, 2012. The accepted flood hazard report will form an attachment to a restrictive 
covenant to be registered on title prior to issuance of a building permit. 

Development Guidelines: 

The District OCP includes development permit guidelines to regulate the form and character of higher 
density residential and mixed-use development. At the time of rezoning approval for Seylynn Village 
site-specific development guidelines were adopted to recognize the unique aspects of the 
development, with the remainder of the form and character issues being regulated by the existing 
OCP guidelines. · 

The Seylynn Village development guidelines address items such as the need for pedestrian-oriented 
frontages and the importance of a unique identity, the need for visual impact assessments of new 
development, and objectives for the design of open space areas and linkages to parks. 

The development permit application for "Building C" has been reviewed for compliance with these 
guidelines, as well as the broader OCP guidelines. 

Building Elements: 

The proposed building is 24 storeys in 
height and includes a townhouse and 
stacked apartment podium element. Each 
of the elevations of the building 
incorporate different design elements to 
help add interest to the building, and the 
roof level includes a lighted "lantern" 
feature to help the building function as a 
gateway element when viewed from 
Highway One. 

The main building entrance is located at 
the south-west corner the site, oriented 
toward the intersection of Fern Street and 
the new internal roadway. Parking access 
will be from a driveway located on the 
internal roadway at the north-west portion 
of the site. 

The view above shows the north and east 
elevations of the building, as viewed from Highway One and the Fern Street Interchange. The new 
Keith Road extension is shown in the foreground of the image, and future development (the rental 
building) would take place at the right side. The "lantern" element is shown at the roofline of the 
building: an element composed of layered glass and steel wall surfaces and to be illuminated from 
within by carefully-designed lighting. The intent is to cast a glow to the east and to the south and a 
"fin wall" of the building at this location will block the illumination from the view of uphill residences to 
the north. Details of the illumination are required to be provided to the District for approval prior to the 
issuance of a building permit. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 (Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 7 

The Fern Street elevation 
of the building includes a 
four storey element 
composed of two-storey 
townhouses (each with a 
private patio slightly 
above sidewalk level) and 
two storeys of apartments 
above. A glazed stair 
tower is located at the 
east end of this podium. 

The relationship of the podium and tower elements is shown in this view below of the south elevation 
of the building along the Fern Street frontage. The Fern Street cul-de-sac is located to the right of the 
image, and the new internal road to the left. 

Building Finishes and Building Character: 

The south surface of the "lantern" element is 
evident at the top of the building in this view, 
as well as the landscape elements at the 
Level 5 roof terraces and the penthouse 
roof terraces. 

As part of the work in progress on the Lower Lynn Implementation Plan, it has been suggested that 
the design theme for Lower Lynn be "Connections: connections to nature and the outdoors, and 
connections to industry." References include Lynn Creek Park and the existing trail system, mountain 
views, active outdoor recreation such as hiking and mountain biking, port industry, and the existing 
eclectic light industrial area. Secondary references to this theme include the early development 
history of the area, with the logging industry being a part of this, as well as links to the Squamish 
Nation and Lynnmour North. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 8 

Suggested building cladding and design 
elements for Lower Lynn include: "corten" 
(natural rusted finish) steel and other 
architectural metals, rough stone, heavy 
timber, brick, glass, bold colours and 
geometric shapes - all elements which can 
relate to the nearby industrial precinct. 

For "Building C" a finish palette of glass, 
spandrel glass, architectural metal panels 
and coloured vertical bands, wood-look 
fibre cement panels, and patterned 
concrete help to fulfill these design 
objectives. Colour has been used in a 
limited yet expressive manner in order to 
emphasize important architectural and 
landscape features of the building and site. 

An image of the materials and colour board is attached to Development Permit 67 .12, and an 
indication of the colours and materials is shown above. 

Building Height: 

The CD67 Zone regulating Seylynn Village sets out maximum heights for each of the development 
parcels in the project. The maximum permitted height for "Parcel 1" the site of proposed "Building C" 
is 75.4 m (247.4 feet). 

The building as proposed is 72.0 m (236.2 ft.) in height and complies with the maximum height 
permitted under the CD67 zone. 

Parking, Bicycle Parking, and Co-op Vehicles: 

The CD-67 zone regulating development at Seylynn Village sets out residential parking requirements 
at 1.1 parking spaces per unit, with visitor parking to be provided at 0.1 parking spaces per unit. With 
201 dwelling units in the proposed building, required parking is 221 parking spaces for residents and 
20 spaces for visitors. 

Parking proposed in the two level underground parking garage is 227 spaces for residents (including 
six tandem parking spaces) 20 spaces for visitors, and 2 spaces for co-op car parking. The proposed 
parking complies with the requirements of the CD-67 zoning. 

Under the CD67 Zone, up to 25% of dwelling units are allowed to be "unbundled" from parking. For 
proposed "Building C" this means that up to 56 parking spaces can be unbundled. This approach 
separates the parking requirement from the sale of the strata units to allow greater flexibility and 
choice for those who do not have a car. Under this scenario, the purchase of a parking space would 
be optional for some units. Unbundling is expected to make more efficient use of the parking 
provided and those residents not needing parking would not need to pay for it in the price of their unit. 
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SUBJECT: Seylynn Village- Development Permit 67.12 [Phase 1- Building "C"] 
January 23, 2013 Page 9 

The CD67 Zone includes requirements for bicycle parking in excess of the District's basic 
requirements requiring one secure bicycle parking stall for each two dwelling units. The "Building C" 
development proposal exceeds the CD67 zoning requirements with a ratio of 1.4 bicycle parking 
spaces per unit. 

Bicycle parking facilities include 75 dedicated bicycle lockers in the parking garage and 206 indoor 
bicycle parking spaces formatted as combination bicycle parking/storage units at Level 1 of the 
building. The bicycle parking area at Level 1 includes a dedicated access through the amenity 
courtyard at the west side of the building, a combination dog/bicycle wash area, and a bicycle repair 
room. 

Eight short-term visitor bike parking spaces are also proposed near the front entrance to the building. 

The CD67 Zone includes a requirement for co-op cars to be provided at a ratio of one vehicle per 160 
dwelling units. Accordingly, "Building C" will require two co-op cars to be available for the use of 
residents. Parking for the co-op cars, as well as securing the cars, such as through an appropriate 
agreement with a car share organization, are noted as requirements of the development permit. 

Acoustical Performance: 

The project will be required to meet the acoustical requirements of the CD67 zoning. 

A report is required prior to building permit issuance to confirm that the building as designed will 
provide for acoustical performance as indicated in the CD67 zoning. The applicant has indicated that 
the building will include triple-glazed windows in all of the dwelling units (not just those facing the 
highway). This approach should result in a window system that performs at a very high level , and is a 
form of construction only rarely seen in the District. A side-effect will be improved energy 
performance of the window system. 

Green Buildings and Stormwater Management: 

Green buildings provisions for the Seylynn Village project require that buildings meet a standard of at 
least "LEED© Silver'' equivalent and be ready for District Energy or water-based (hydronic) heating 
systems. These standards are secured in the Development Covenant registered as part of the 
rezoning process. The covenant requires that a specific "green building covenant" confirming the 
green building approach to be implemented is to be registered on the title of the property prior to 
issuance of a building permit. 

The applicant is proposing "Building C" to comply with the original "LEED© Silver" or equivalent target 
as noted in the Development Covenant for the Seylynn Village project. The applicant has noted that 
they anticipate the project to achieve a number of LEEDc points close to achieving a "LEEDc Gold" or 
equivalent standard. Confirmation of the final LEED© calculation will be resolved prior to building 
permit issuance and referenced in the required green building covenant. 

The Development Covenant also sets out requirements for a covenant to secure the installation and 
maintenance of the approved stormwater management system for the site. 

The applicant has confirmed participation with the proposed Fortis District Energy System for the 
Maplewood/Lower Lynn areas, and the legal framework for the project requires that buildings on the 
site be "District Energy Ready" and include water-based (hydronic) heating systems. 
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Landscape Plan: 

Partly arising from flood hazards in the 
area, the project includes a terraced 
approach to the landscape plan. Some 
outdoor areas will be located at grade 
level, while others will be accessible from 
Level 2. A cross-section drawing showing 
the relationship of the multi-purpose path 
along the E. Keith Road extension is 
shown adjacent. 

Plantings of trees and shrubs at upper 
levels - on Level 5 and the penthouse roof 
decks -will help to integrate the 
landscape with the building and soften the 
appearance of the building. 

Children's Play Areas: 

The landscape plan includes two areas for children's play on the upper level landscaped area: one, 
including a sandbox, in the northern portion of the upper terrace, and the second, including two 
pieces of play equipment, at the east side. Both spaces will be universally accessible and designed 
to be interesting to children of different ages. Physical and visual access to these spaces will be 
available from the ground level amenity area, as well as directly from the building's common corridor. 

Outdoor Amenity Area: 

The project design includes an outdoor amenity area at the west side of the site. This area includes a 
natural gas fire pit feature (intended as a reference to the campfire as part of North Shore culture) 
and seating areas. Its location adjacent to one of the indoor amenity areas will help to improve its 
usability. 

Adjacent to this amenity area is a textured wood feature wall designed as a backdrop, and intended 
as a reference to the industrial processing of lumber on the North Shore. The wall is layered to 
create a character similar to the wood feature walls at the Vancouver Convention Centre, but is 
proposed to be constructed using a durable, low-maintenance fibre-cement and wood veneer panel. 

Townhouse Entries: 

The entries to the townhouse units along Fern 
Street have been designed to ensure a 
comfortable pedestrian environment for the 
Fern Street sidewalk, as well as useable and 
comfortable outdoor space for the townhouse 
units. These entries include perforated metal 
feature panels at the gate locations and glass 
railings to add interest to the streetscape and 
to improve the sense of transparency for the 
building face. A cross-section of the design for 
this area is shown adjacent. 
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Fern Street Emergency Access: 

The design for the east end of the new 
Fern Street cul-de-sac includes provision 
for an emergency access useable should 
emergency vehicles need an alternate 
route to access the Fern Street overpass 
and the Fern Street interchange area. 

The access location is shown schematically 
at the blue arrow in the adjacent image. 

This portion of the site also includes 
planting areas to help in buffering the 
development from the Fern Street 
interchange. 

Housing Objectives: 

One of the objectives of the Seylynn Village project has been to create variety in housing choice in 
type of dwelling, as well as tenure. The overall project includes the creation of 70 affordable rental 
units in a future phase in the development. 

"Building C" includes 201 dwelling units intended for strata ownership. In order to ensure that 
purchasers of the units are eligible to operate these as private rentals, and to help contribute to the 
stock of rental dwellings in the District, a housing agreement under Section 905 of the Local 
Government Act has been entered into for the property. This housing agreement stipulates that 
rentals are a permitted form of tenure and precludes the registration of rental restrictions on the 
condominium units by the eventual strata corporation. 

There are no specific unit type or mix requirements for Seylynn Village, but the District has 
encouraged a variety of unit sizes and types to help encourage affordability and housing for a variety 
of household types. 

The breakdown of unit types for the proposed dwellings in "Building C" includes the following: 

Unit Type Number Unit Size 
of Units 

Townhouse 5 ranging from 125m"' (1345 sq. ft.) to 140m"' (1507 sq. ft.) 
(all 2 bedroom + den} 
1 Bedroom 63 ranging from 53 m" (571 sQ. ft.) to 61 m" (657 SQ. ft.) 
1 Bedroom+ Den 41 ranging from 55 m"' (594 SQ. ft.) to 90 m"' (973 sq. ft.) 
2 Bedroom 61 ranging from 78 m" (841 sQ. ft.) to 96 m" _{1 033 sq. ft.) 
2 Bedroom + Den 26 ranging from 94 m"' (1012 sq. ft.) to 179m" (1927 SQ. ft.) 
3 Bedroom 1 180 m"_{1935 sq. ft.) 
3 Bedroom+ Den 4 ranging from 126m"' (1356 SQ. ft.) to 180m" (1944 sq. ft.) 

TOTAL: 201 

The applicant has proposed, based on their own market research, that "Building C" contain a mix of 
smaller one bedroom and two bedroom units and fewer larger units. It is anticipated that future 
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phases may include a different unit mix (and unit sizes) that may include larger 3 bedroom units, 
however this will be dependent on market conditions at that time. 

There are no "lock-off' units (to provide for a separate rentable space within a strata unit) in "Building 
C". This option is permitted in the CD67 zoning, and may be considered for future phases of Seylynn 
Village based on market demand at the time. 

Adaptable Design: 

The Development Covenant provisions for Seylynn Village require that all units meet the Level 2 
guidelines (with some adjustments to reflect the format of the Seylynn Village development) and that 
37 units in the overall project meet the Level 3 guidelines. 

There are five "Level 3" units proposed in "Building C" and a total of 37 required "Level 3" units in the 
entire Seylynn Village project. 

Inclusion of the Level 2 accessibility features in all proposed units and Level 3 features in five of the 
units will be beneficial in allowing for "aging in place" and helping to accommodate residents of 
differing levels of physical ability. 

Public Art: 

Public art obligations for the Seylynn Village project were determined at the rezoning stage. The 
public art amount of $600,000 has been secured in the Seylynn Village Development Covenant. 

The Development Covenant sets out the requirements for public art for the site and indicates that pro­
rating of the public art amount is to take place based on the number of units in each building 
proposed to be constructed. In this case, the 201 units in the building would have public art 
associated in the amount of $152,658. 

The applicant will be required to further develop their approach to public art, for both the subject 
"Building C" and for the entire Seylynn Village project, and once complete the public art plan will be 
reviewed by the joint District and City of North Vancouver Public Art Advisory Committee. Security for 
public art in the amount of $152,658 is a requirement of issuance of the building permit for "Building 
C" and is noted as a condition of Development Permit 67.12. 

Off-site Servicing Upgrades and Transportation Improvements: 

The Seylynn Village development is required to provide improvements to the transportation system to 
support pedestrians, cycling and transit use. Transportation demand management (TOM) measures 
such as car-sharing, bicycle and pedestrian connections, and greater accessibility to transit 
opportunities were included in the original development. 

The rezoning approval for Seylynn Village includes off-site trail improvements to the north, under 
Keith Road Bridge and Highway One, to improve connectivity to the Lynnmour Inter-River community 
and access to Lynnmour elementary school, and to the south, along Orwell Street to improve access 
to the existing Phibbs Transit Exchange. 

Road improvements, utility upgrades, and landscaping and trail connections are conditions of the 
rezoning approval for Seylynn Village and are secured in the Development Covenant for the project. 
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Off-site amenities and upgrades noted in the Development Covenant for the project include: 

(a) construction of the Lynnmour Connector Trail; 
(b) construction of the new Sanitary Sewer to Main Street to District standards; 
(c) intersection improvements at the intersection of Mountain Highway and Fern Street; 
(d) design of the new Keith Road extension; 
(e) reconstruction of Mountain Highway and Fern Street necessary to serve the development 

and enhance traffic circulation on the local road network; 
(f) construction of roadway, drainage, curbs, gutters and street lighting on both sides of 

Mountain Highway and Fern Street in association with any intersection improvements and 
road widening; 

(g) construction of sidewalks, street furniture, pedestrian lighting and landscaped boulevards 
on Mountain Highway and on the north side of Fern Street for the safe use of the public; 

(h) other utility upgrades to meet District requirements. 

The details of road design, such as access and Ianing, are being resolved as part of Development 
Covenant requirements and the required Engineering Services Agreement to secure off-site service 
upgrades for the development will be finalized prior to issuance of a building permit on the site. 

Construction Management: 

In order to ensure that neighbours and the wider community are kept informed on the progress of 
construction, the applicant has committed to the use of an interactive website which will provide 
construction updates, traffic management information, and the ability for the public to ask questions 
and to receive information. This website will be part of the applicant's commitment to ensuring that 
the Seylynn Village project be constructed with as little impact and disruption as possible. 

The Development Covenant for the project specifies that a building permit will not be issued for the 
site until the applicant has submitted a traffic management plan that addresses to the District's 
satisfaction the traffic issues anticipated to arise during development, and the covenant provides the 
District the ability to require modifications to the accepted traffic management plan to address traffic 
issues and problems that may arise during construction. Items such as communications, road and 
sidewalk closures, noise, and a contact number and email address for inquiries and complaints are all 
components that would be expected as part of the required traffic management plan. 

The proposed E. Keith Road extension is required to be built prior to the developer undertaking work 
in the existing Fern Street road allowance to complete proposed "Building C." When the E. Keith 
Road extension is available for use by the public, the eastern end of Fern Street can be closed to 
create the Fern Street cul-de-sac, with traffic being re-routed to the new road connection. 

FINANCIAL ISSUES: 

Financial contributions and obligations associated with this development are secured through the 
Development Covenant, the phased development agreement, and the density bonusing provisions of 
the CD67 Zone. 

OUTSIDE AGENCY CONSULTATION: 

The City of North Vancouver, School District 44, Squamish Nation, and the Ministry of Transportation 
reviewed the rezoning proposal for the site, and no objections were registered. 
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PUBLIC INPUT: 

As the subject development permit application is part of the larger Seylynn Village development 
project, public consultation has taken place as part of the application processing for the rezoning 
application approved in December of 2012. A Public Information Meeting was held on June 27, 2012 
and key issues noted by the applicant's meeting facilitator and by District staff were the impacts on 
traffic and roads, and notably general support for the proposed extension of Keith Road. Other 
questions concerned the height and placement of the proposed high-rise buildings. 

Eight written or emailed comments were submitted following the meeting: three comments were in 
support of the project, four noted specific opposition and one listed a combination of support and 
concerns. Of those noting support for the project, the opportunity for a new road connection and for 
new housing options were indicated, while those in opposition fel t the density proposed was too high 
and that existing traffic concerns would be made worse by the addition of more dwelling units. 

A representative of the Lynnmour Elementary School Parent Advisory Council noted the importance 
of a safe and comfortable connection between the south and north sides of Highway One to allow 
children in the new development to access Lynnmour Elementary School on foot and on bicycle. It 
was suggested in response that the District would consult further with the Parent Advisory Council 
during the design process for this required pedestrian connection. 

Finalizing the landscape plan for the offsite servicing, which includes the above-noted trail 
connection, will include consultation with the Parent Advisory Council. 

ADVISORY DESIGN PANEL: 

The Advisory Design Panel considered the development permit proposal at its meeting of September 
13, 2012. At that meeting the Panel passed unanimously the following motion regarding the rezoning 
application for Seylynn Village: 

THAT the ADP has reviewed the proposal, commends the applicant for the quality of the 
proposal, and recommends APPROVAL of the project as presented. 

Topic areas mentioned by the Panel in their review included: 

• Compliments for a successful design that should be a positive addition to the area 
• The lantern element as a component of the building that strongly anchors the southeast 

corner of the building and should become a marker for development in the future 
• The positive nature of the colours proposed in the development, and the possibility for adding 

more, or more vibrant colour. 
• Opportunities for public art on the building and benefits of integrating the art with the building 

and landscape design 
• Some fine-tuning regarding the proposed "raw wood" feature wall on the west elevation 

adjacent to the lower amenity area and possible revisions to the exterior staircase in this 
location to make it more inviting 

• The need for a successful approach to providing appropriate playground equipment 

District Staff have reviewed with the applicant each of the items noted by the Panel for consideration 
and changes have been incorporated to ensure the building addresses these objectives. 
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CONCLUSION: 

The Phase 1 building in the Seylynn Village development- "Building C"- has been designed to reflect 
the overall objectives of the development project: to create an innovative, mixed-use neighbourhood 
which incorporates sustainable development principles. The development permit application for this 
building has been evaluated for compliance with form and character guidelines, creek hazard issues, 
and energy and water conservation I reduction of greenhouse gas emissions. The building has been 
reviewed by the District's Advisory Design Panel and by District staff to ensure a design that will best 
reflect the objectives for the new Town Centre at Lower Lynn. 

Michael Hartford, MCIP 
Community Planner 

Attachments: 

A. DP 67.12 with Attached Drawings 
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x Development Services 
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x Engineering Operations 

x Parks & Environment 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 67.12 

This Development Permit 67.12 is hereby issued by the Council for The District of North 
Vancouver to Seylynn (North Shore) Properties Corp. Inc. No. BC0920285 to allow for 
construction of a residential building at 1550 Fern Street on the land described as: PID 
028-988-302, Lot 1, District Lot 613, Group 1, NWD Plan EPP26561 (the "Land") 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 

A. The following requirement is hereby imposed under subsection 926(1) of the 
Local Government Act: 

1. Substantial construction shall commence within two years of the date of 
this permit, as determined by the Manager of Permits and Licenses, or the 
permit shall lapse. 

B. The following requirements are hereby imposed under subsections 920(1 ), (7.1 ), 
(8), (9), (1 0.1) and (1 0.2) of the Local Government Act: 

1. The site shall be developed in accordance with the flood assessment 
report by LaCas Consultants Inc. , dated December 20, 2012. 

2. The site shall be developed in accordance with the attached site and 
building plans (Appendices 67.12 A- 67.12 T). 

3. Prior to issuance of a Building Permit the following shall be submitted to: 

(a) Community Planning : 

(i) a report and recommendations prepared by persons trained 
in acoustics and current techniques of noise measurements, 
demonstrating that any rooftop mechanical equipment will 
comply with the District of North Vancouver Noise 
Regulation Bylaw, and the noise levels in those portions of 
the dwelling listed below shall not exceed the noise levels 
expressed in decibels set opposite such portions of the 
dwelling units. For the purpose of this section the noise level 
is the A-weighted 24-hour equivalent (Leq) sound level and 
will be defined simply as the noise level in decibels: 

Portion of Dwelling Unit Noise Level (Decibels) 

bedrooms 35 
living, dining, recreation rooms 40 
kitchen, bathrooms, hallways 45 

(ii) a finalized landscape plan for on-site areas, approved by 
the Director of Planning, Permits and Bylaws; 
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(iii) a written landscape estimate for the installation of all 
landscaping as shown on the final approved landscape plan, 
submitted by the Landscape Architect, and approved by the 
Director of Planning, Permits and Bylaws; 

(iv) a completed "Permission to Enter'' agreement to provide 
evidence that a Landscape Architect has been retained to 
supervise the installation of the landscape works and the 
written authorization for the District or its agents to enter the 
premises and expend any or all of the deposit monies to 
complete the landscape works in accordance with the 
approved landscape plan; 

(v) security in the amount of $152,658 to be held to secure the 
installation of public art; 

(vi) a signed restrictive covenant document indicating that pairs 
of tandem parking spaces will be assigned only to the same 
dwelling unit; 

(vii) a signed restrictive covenant document protecting two 
parking spaces for "co-op car" use and accompanied by an 
appropriate agreement or security to ensure availability of 
two "co-op car" vehicles at the development site; and 

(viii) details of the lighting system(s) proposed for the "lantern" 
element at the roofline of the proposed building sufficient to 
determine that the lighting proposed will avoid undue glare. 

C. The following requirements are hereby imposed under subsections 925(1) & (2) 
of the Local Government Act: · 

1. A security deposit equal to the greater of 125% of the estimated cost of all 
on-site landscaping , in accordance with the approved cost estimate, or 
10% of the construction value accepted on the building permit application. 
The deposit must be provided prior to issuance of a building permit for the 
proposed development on the Land and will be held as security for 
landscaping, building and environmental works. 

Nothing in this Development Permit alters or affects in any way any of the preconditions 
to issuance of a building permit as set out in the Development Covenant registered 
against the Land in favour of the District under number CA2917929. 

Dated this _ day of ____ , 2013 

Mayor Municipal Clerk 
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COUNCIL AGENDA/INFORMATION 

Date: Item# 0 ) n Camera 

V Regular 

0 Agenda Addendum 

0 Info Package 

- ---------1 
Date: ~ L±, z Ol"3 Item# - ---------1 
Date: Item# 

OM# Date: Mailbox: 

The District of North Vancouver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

January 11, 2013 
File: 3060-20-10.12 
Tracking Number: RCA -

AUTHOR: Tamsin Guppy, Community Planning 

SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE - DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Development Permit 10.12 for a 4 storey mixed use building at 1551 Pemberton Ave, 
be issued. 

SUMMARY: 

The applicant, Wensley Architecture, has proposed a 4 storey mixed use building for the 
corner of West 16th and Pemberton Avenue, in keeping with the Marine Drive (C9) Zoning 
and the Marine Drive Design Guidelines. The applicant originally proposed a building with a 
very similar style to the recently approved projects on Marine Drive ("The Drive" and "The 
Ivy") and was requested to consider an alternate design style in order to create a broader 
diversity of building styles in the area. The current proposal is the applicant's response to 
both this request, and the desire to create a building that bridges the Marine Drive character 
with the more industrial Pemberton character. 

EXISTING POLICY: 

The site is zoned Marine Drive (C9) and is within 
the Marine Drive Design Guidelines area. 

This site is in the Development Permit Areas for 
Form and Character and for Energy and Water 
Conservation and Reduction of Greenhouse Gas 
Emissions. 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE - DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 

ANALYSIS: 

Context: 

The subject site is located at the south-west 
corner of West 161h Street and Pemberton 
Avenue, immediately south of the parking lot for 
McDonald's restaurant. The site is in the 
transition area between the commercial 
character of Marine Drive and the more industrial 
character of Pemberton. 

Proposed Development: 

The current proposal is for a 4 storey mixed use 
building, consisting of 5,642 square feet of 
commercial floor space on the main floor and 30 
residential units on the upper 3 floors. 

The residential units are a blend of 1 and 2 
bedroom units ranging in size from 530 square 
feet to 918 square feet. Primary access to the 
residential units is from a lobby located on West 161hStreet. 

BACX LANE 

Page 2 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE- DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 Page 3 

Parking is accessed from the lane and includes 16 visitor and customer parking spaces at 
the rear of the building at grade and 43 spaces underground. There is a total of 59 parking 
spaces. 

Streetscape: 

Both Pemberton and West 16th will be upgraded in front of this site with wider sidewalks, 
street trees and planting, and the addition of benches. A curb bulge at the corner will be 
added to improve pedestrian crossing safety, and similarly pedestrian safety im~rovements 
are proposed for the lane and pedestrian access to the continuation of West 16 h Street. 

Urban Design: 

The proposal is for a modern four storey building with retail spaces at grade. The design 
meets the Design Guidelines for Commercial and Mixed Use Buildings and the Marine Drive 
Design Guidelines, and in particular has addressed the guideline requirements for: 

• Developing a strong streetscape through suitable setbacks, building orientation to the 
street, commercial unit sizes and lobby design; 

• Providing a strong parking design that provides easily accessible visitor and customer 
parking at grade, accessed from the lane and with a pedestrian connection to the 
street; 

• Variation in building design, as mentioned this project was redesigned to ensure it was 
different to the recently approved projects in the area; and 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE- DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 Page4 

• Building materials, which include red hardi-plank, galvanized aluminium corrugated 
siding , and darker grey corrugated metal, that provide a transition to the industrial 
character of Pemberton Avenue. 

Advisory Design Panel: 

The development was supported by the Advisory Design Panel, and the application has been 
further revised to address the issues raised at the meeting, including: 

• Designing deeper canopies over the sidewalk; 
• Creating a more open lobby area; 
• Creating better visibility into the walkway that connects the parking to the street front 

and lobby area; 
• An improved layout for the at-grade parking; and 
• An improved design for the corner patio. 

Adaptable Design: 

The proposal includes 80% of the units constructed to level 1 B and 20% level 2, to allow for 
better accessibility and adaptability and to enable aging in place. 

Water Table/ Basement Requirements: 

Based on the current geotechnical information on the ground water conditions at this site, the 
basement is required to be "tanked ," in order to avoid excessive discharge into the municipal 
storm system and creek environment. Tanking also has the advantage of reducing energy 
consumption as a pump system does not need to operate twenty-four hours a day. 

Green Building: 

The site is in the development permit area for Energy and Water Conservation and 
Greenhouse Gas Emission Reduction, but as this project does not require rezoning the 
District's Green Building Strategy does not require the project to meet a Built Green or LEED 
Gold equivalent standard . 

To address the Development Permit Guidelines, the coordinating professional has completed 
the Built Green Checklist. The checklist indicates a number of energy and water 
conservation items included in the design as well as items to reduce greenhouse gas 
emissions. The following items have been confirmed : 

• Landscaping : Install efficient irrigation, drought tolerant plants, and reduce lawn areas 
to less than 50% of landscaped areas. 

• Water conservation : Install GSA approved low flush toilets, and low flow faucet 
aerators on all bathroom and kitchen sinks. 

• Energy Efficiency: 
o Insulate hot water lines where units contain independent DHW systems; 
o Install energy star appliances; 
o Install ceiling fan wired rough in for each unit; 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE- DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 

o Multiple heating/ cooling zones in each unit; 
o Install direct metering for each unit; 
o Install insulation to meet or exceed the MNECB standard ; 

Page 5 

o Install air tight, insulation contact -rated recessed lights in insulated ceilings 
where recesses lights are used; and 

o Install advanced sealing packages, non-HCFC expanding foam around 
window, door and exterior wall penetrations. 

• Reductions in Off Gassing: Install ceramic tiles with low VOC adhesives and all wood 
or laminate flooring is factory finished. 

• Install 25 year roofing material with manufacturer's warranty; and 
• Establish comprehensive recycling program for the construction site. 

In addition to this list, the applicant is considering a variety of additional green building 
techniques and will install them if products are available and priced competitively. 

Associated Variances: 

Parking: 

The residential parking rate is proposed to be reduced to 1.5 parking spaces per unit 
inclusive of 4 visitor spaces. This is a reduction from 54 spaces to 45 spaces, and is 
supported by staff given the size of the units and the proximity to transit on Marine Drive. 

Staff are also recommending a variance to the commercial parking requirement to increase 
the requirement over the minimum commercial rate to a blended rate that would allow 
greater flexibility over the lifespan of this building . The basic commercial rate is 1 space I 
45m2

, which would result in a requirement for 12 parking spaces. The proposal is to apply 
the blended rate of 1 space I 30 m2 for a total requirement of 18 spaces. While this is more 
onerous it does then ensure that if a commercial unit is used in the future for a cafe or 
restaurant there is sufficient parking to cover that requirement. 

A third parking variances is also proposed and supported by staff and that is for the sharing 
of customer and residential visitor parking, recognizing that the pool of public parking spaces 
is best used if it is a shared resource. This flexibility also recognizes that the demands for 
residential visitor and commercial customer parking typically occur at different times of day. 

In support of the variance and to ensure that the residential visitor and commercial customer 
parking remains a shared resource and is not otherwise reallocated the Development Permit 
will contain a requirement for an appropriate restrictive covenant. 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE- DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 

Summary of Parking Variances 

Page6 

Regulation Requirement Under Proposed Requirement 
Existing Zoning 

Parking- Total 66 total 59 total 

Resident Parking 46 41 spaces 
Residential Visitor Parking 8 spaces 4 spaces 
Total 54 spaces 45 spaces 

Commercial Parking 12 spaces 14 spaces 

Plus shared visitor parking NA 4 spaces 
Total 12 spaces 18 spaces 

Building Height: 

The maximum permitted building height for a flat roof is 44.3 feet. The applicant is proposing 
a building height variance of up to 3.9 feet for those portions of the building that step up 
(circled below). Staff support this variance as it allows more articulation in the building 
design without negatively impacting any neighbours or affecting any views. 

Height Variance 
Regulation Requirement Proposed 
Building Height 44.3 feet 48.2 feet 

(13.5 m) (14.7 m) 
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SUBJECT: 1551 PEMBERTON AVENUE- DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 
MIXED COMMERCIAL RESIDENTIAL BUILDING 

January 11 , 2013 Page 7 

Public Input: 

A public information meeting was held on May 2, 2012 and attended by approximately 20 
local residents and business owners. Generally the project was well received and comments 
at the meeting were positive. Two feedback forms and an email were submitted after the 
meeting with questions or concerns about traffic in the lane and loss of existing commercial 
units. Regarding traffic in the lane, Transportation staff have reviewed traffic speeds and 
asked the applicant to install speed humps and improvements to pedestrian lane connectivity 
to West 161

h Street. The applicant is installing these works in their required off-site 
improvements. Regarding loss of the existing commercial units on the site which are smaller 
than most commercial retail units, the applicant has proposed commercial retail units that are 
relatively small in size in order to potentially accommodate some of the existing businesses 
in the future. 

Conclusion: 

The applicant has addressed the requirements of the Development Permit process and DP 
10.12 is now ready to be considered for issuance. 

Options: 
1. That Development Permit 10.12 for a 4 storey mixed use building at 1551 Pemberton 

Ave, be issued (staff recommendation), or 
2. That Development Permit 10.12 for a 4 storey mixed use building at 1551 Pemberton 

Ave. be rejected and returned to staff with direction on outstanding DP items to be 
resolved prior to further consideration. 

L~ • 
Tamsin Guppy 
Community Planning 

Attachments: 
DP 10.12 and attached drawings 

REVIEWED WITH: 

0 Sustainable Community 

Development 

0 Development Services 

0 Utilities 

0 Engineering Operations 

0 Parks & Environment 

REVIEWED WITH: 

0 Clerk's Office 

0 Corporate Services 

0 Communications 

0 Finance 

0 Fire Services 

0 Human resources 

0 Economic Development 0 ITS 

0 Solicitor 

O GIS 

REVIEWED WITH: 

External Agencies: 

0 Library Board 

0 NS Health 

ORCMP 

0 Recreation Commission 

0 Other: 

REVIEWED WITH: 

Advisory Committees: 
0 
0 --------------~ 

0 
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THE CORPORATION OF THE DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

DEVELOPMENT PERMIT 10.12 

This Development Permit 10.12 is hereby issued by the Council for The Corporation of 
the District of North Vancouver to 0891354 B.C. Ltd., Inc No 0891354 for the 
development of the property located at 1551 Pemberton Avenue, described as Lot G 
(Explanatory Plan 1 0400), Block 58, District Lot 552, Plan 4680, (PID: 009-291-709) 
subject to the following terms and conditions: 

A. The following Zoning Bylaw regulations are varied under Section 920(2)(a) of the 
Local Government Act: 

1. Residential parking is reduced to 1.5 spaces per unit inclusive of 4 spaces for 
residential visitor parking; 

2. All commercial parking rates are varied to a single rate of 1 space I 30m2 to 
be applied to all commercial uses permitted in the zone; 

2. Residential visitor parking spaces and commercial spaces may be shared; and 

3. Building height is increased to 14.7m (48.2 feet). 

B. The following requirement is imposed under Subsection 920(2)(c) of the Local 
Government Act: 

Substantial construction as determined by the Manager of Permits and Licenses 
shall commence within two years of the date of this permit or the permit shall 
lapse. 

C. The following requirements are imposed under Subsections 920(8) & (9) of the 
Local Government Act: 

1 . The site shall be developed in accordance with the attached plans ( 1 0. 12A 
to10.12N); 

2. To address the high water table the basement shall be "tanked"; 

3. Prior to the issuance of a Building Permit, the following shall be submitted 
to: 

(a) Parks and Engineering Services: 

(i) Three copies of a final detailed landscape plan prepared by a 
landscape architect registered in British Columbia for the approval 

Document: 1995673 
84



of the Director of Planning , Engineering, Parks and Regulatory 
Services; 

(ii) A written landscape estimate submitted by the landscape architect 
for approval by the Parks and Engineering Services Department for 
the installation of all landscaping as shown on the final approved 
landscape plan; and 

(iii) A completed "Permission to Enter" agreement to provide evidence 
that a landscape architect has been retained to supervise the 
installation of the landscape works and the written authorization for 
the District or its agents to enter the premises and expend any or all 
of the deposit monies to complete the landscape works in 
accordance with the approved landscape plan. 

(c) Engineering Design: 

(i) Finalized civil and electrical engineering plans designed by a 
professional engineer, for review and acceptance by the 
Engineering Department; 

(ii) An executed Engineering Services Agreement between the 
property owner and the District related to the required upgrading 
of off-site facilities on Pemberton Avenue and West 16t11 Street 
and the adjacent lane. Upgrades will include, but are not 
limited to: street lighting, sidewalk, curb gutter, street trees, and 
street improvements; and 

(iii) A security deposit as specified in the Engineering Services 
Agreement. 

(d) Parking: 

Registration of a section 219 covenant for the purpose of 
stipulating that all 4 residential visitor parking spaces and all at­
grade commercial parking spaces will be pooled and available 
for public use and none will be designated as limited common 
property or otherwise assigned to specific strata lots, premises 
or businesses. 

D. The following requirements are imposed under Subsection 920 (10.1) and (10.2) 
of the Local Government Act: 

(i) Install efficient irrigation; 
(ii) Install drought tolerant plants; 
(iii) Reduce lawn areas to less than 50% of landscaped areas; 
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(iv) Install CSA approved low flush toilets; 
(v) Insulate hot water lines where units contain independent DHW 

systems; 
(vi) Install low flow faucet aerators on all bathroom and kitchen 

sinks; 
(vii) Install energy star appliances; 
(viii) Install ceiling fan wired rough in for each unit; 
(ix) Multiple heating/ cooling zones in each unit; 
(x) Install direct metering for each unit; 
(xi) Install insulation to meet or exceed the MNECB standard; 
(xii) Install ceramic tiles with low VOC adhesives; 
(xiii) Install air tight, insulation contact -rated recessed lights in 

insulated ceilings where recesses lights are used; 
(xiv) Install advanced sealing packages, non-HCFC expanding foam 

around window, door and exterior wall penetrations. 
(xv) Install 25 year roofing material with manufacturer's warranty; 
(xvi) All wood or laminate flooring is factory finished; and 
(xvii) Establish comprehensive recycling program for the construction 

site. 

E. The following requirements are imposed under Subsections 925(1 ) & (2) of the Local 
Government Act: 

1. A security deposit equal to 125% of the estimated cost of all landscaping, 
in accordance with the approved cost estimate. The deposit will be held 
as security for landscaping, building and environmental works. 

Mayor 

Municipal Clerk 

Dated this day of ' 200. 

Document: 1995673 

86



PEMBERTON MIXED USE PROJECT 
THE AVE 

NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C. 
PROJECT # 1124 

ISSUED FOR DEVELOPMENT PERMIT AUGUST 31, 2012 

CUENT: 
PEM!ERTON AVE PROJCTS LID. 
109- 1500 HARTI.EY AVE, 
COQUTLAM, B.C V3K 7A1 
ill) 604- 230-7774 

ARCHTECT: 
WENSI.EY ARQ-ITECTLRE LID. 
301-1444 ALBERN STREET 
VANCOlNER B.C VbC 2Z4 
ill) 604-685- 3529 

LANDSCAPE 
PMG LANDSCAPE ARQ-ITECTS 
100C - 4185 ST1Ll CREEK DRM, 
BLRNABY, B.C. VSC 6G9 
Ta.) 604-294-()011 

OVL: 
C J. A/aRSON OVll ENGI'IEERI\IG INC 
206-828 HARBCll..R510E DRIVE, 
NORTH VANCOUVER, B.C V7P 3R9 
Ta.) 604-984-4297 

SlRVEYOR: 
BlJTlER SLNJVICK 
4- 19089 94TH AYW.JE, 
SlRREY, B.C. V4N 3S4 
TEl) 604-513-9611 

DRAWING LIST 

ARCt-ITECTURAL 

LANDSCAPE 

OVIC A!JORESS: 1551 PEM!ERTON AVE., DISTRICT 0: NORTH VANCOUVER 

lEGAl DESCRPTION: LOT "G" (EXPLANATORY PLAN 10400), LOCK 58, OSTRICT LOT 552, PLAN 4680 
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DESIGN RATIONALE FOR PEMBERTON MU DEVELOPMENT - THE AVE. 

In keeping with District of North Vancouver's vision of the Pemberton Avenue corridor, this design 
proposes a four storey modem structure containing ground floor commercial spaces below three levels 
of residential units, commercial and visitor surface parking at the rear and a fully seeured underground 
parkin.& structure for residents. In working with the Planning Oepanment. we were encoura.sed to 
pursue a more modern aesthetic and shy away from a typlcal"west coan contemporary" style that Is 
already present in thelvy and the Drive projects. In our opinion. the Ave, will be a gateway projeet 
that will greet shoppers and traffic from Marine Drive and be an Impetus for future pedestrian fr~ndly 
milced use development along Pemberton Avenu~ 

The becinnlngs of a shopplna conridor is being supported by ground level commen:lal spaces that have 
been set bode to provide a wide articulated sidewalk with landscaped nodes similar In vocabulary to 
that which has already been established by the relatively new commertlol development to tho North. 
The proposed 21'-9" wide re~il modules aftow for a fle>dbiflly of space that could accorNnodatelarge 
or small prospective businesses alike. Ample glass canopies provide cover for would·be shoppers while 
maln~lnlna as much n.Jtural Ught to the retail spaoes as PQS$lble. These canopies wrap around the 
oommerdal space at the comer of West 16th and Pefnberton which hos been pulled bode to create a 
around howl exterior space (possibly an extension to a ca~ of coffee shop). This patio has been 
further articulated by a perimeter raised planter and ornamental railins that wiN renrict chairs and 
~b'-s from encroachlns onto the sidewalk while malntainlns an "open• feel to the space. 

By pull ina back the mossin1 of this buildins at the corner of West 16th and Pemberton we not only 
create a pedestrlon scaled focal point (cafe patio) but also open up a view corridor to oddltlonal retail 
s,pac:es, access to surface parking and the entrance ro the residential component alons West 16th 
Street. By locating the covered breezeway access parking adjacent to the cafe patio and residential 
entry~ we have provided a safe and convenient route for shop pel"$ to their cars. 

The upper three floors have been set back and lined with planters to soften the edge or street face of 
the building while providing generous outdoor space for second floor residents. Large balconies have 
also been provided to lhlrd and fourth floor residential units so as to allow relatively private outdoor 
space to each living unit. The units themselves have been designed with the youns urban professional 
and small family first time buyers in mind. They are compact and efficient. 

The overall deslsn of thl.s proposed development will bring a fresh look to the Pemberton Avenue 
corridor and help to move District of North Vancouve~s vision of this neighbourhood. 
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The District of North Vancouver 

REPORT TO COUNCIL 

January 15, 2013 
File: 16.8620.20/041 .000 
Tracking Number: RCA -

AUTHOR: Tegan Smith , MCIP, RPP, Transportation Planner 

SUBJECT: Development Servicing Bylaw Amendment - Road Classification 

RECOMMENDATION: 

That Development Servicing Bylaw 7388, 2005, Amendment Bylaw 7975, 2012 (Amendment 
4) is read a FIRST, SECOND and THIRD time. 

REASON FOR REPORT: 
Staff have completed an extensive review of the road classification system. Staff 
recommend that the Development Servicing Bylaw be amended to better align the 
classification of roads with future land use patterns and related traffic growth envisioned in 
the OCP. 

BACKGROUND: 
The review of the District's road classification considered: 

• District's existing road classification practices; 
• National guidelines for road classification from Transportation Association of Canada; 
• OCP land uses and related future traffic volumes; 
• Service implications of any road classification changes; and 
• Counci l input on potential changes to the road classification system. 

EXISTING POLICY: Development Servicing Bylaw 7388, 2005 

ANALYSIS: 
The goal of road classification is to support traffic flow on arterial roads and support slower 
movements on local roads. How a road looks and feels dictates how people drive it. 
Assigning the appropriate road classification will help to create consistency among roads of 
similar functions, reduce liability, and improve safety. Following national best practices 
provides drivers with fairly uniform expectations of road conditions across the country. 
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SUBJECT: Development Servicing Bylaw Amendment- Road Classification 
January 15, 2013 Page 2 

The District's current practice for classifying roads was evaluated based on the growth 
patterns anticipated in the OCP. Some roads in the upper areas of the District are not ever 
going to carry as much traffic as once envisioned and some roads in growing areas will play 
a greater role. Future traffic volumes were filtered relative to Transportation Association of 
Canada guidelines. In addition, a distinct rural road classification was identified to address 
the stretch of Indian River Drive to Woodlands and Mountain Highway north of Borthwick. 

The proposed change will provide staff with a better framework for addressing service 
requests. The changes will not limit the District's flexibility in making decisions concerning 
priorities for sidewalks, snow clearing, or road paving. 

Concurrence: 
• Policy planning provided input on road classification relative to the OCP. 
• Streets provided specific inpl,.Jt on service implications of road classification changes. 
• Legal identified required policy changes. 

Financial Impacts: No direct financial implications at this time. With a clear policy 
framework about the function of roadways in the District, some roads may become a higher 
or lower priority for servicing and so District resources will be appropriately allocated. 

Liability/Risk: An appropriately classified road network can improve safety and reduce risk. 

Public Input: The public has been consulted and provided feedback on road classification 
through the development of the Transportation Plan in 2012. 

Conclusion: 
To better align road classification information in the Development Servicing Bylaw 7388 
(2005) with the District's existing practice as well as the OCP and Transportation Plan, staff 
recommend that the policy framework be amended. · 

-~ 
Tegan Smith, MCIP, RPP 
Transportation Planner 

REVIEWED WITH: 

a Sustainable Community 

Development 

a Development Services 

a Utilities 

a Engineering Operations 

D Parks & Environment 

D Economic Development 

REVIEWED WITH: 

a Clerk's Office 

D Corporate Services 

D Communications 

D Finance 

a Fire Services 

a Human resources 

a ITS 

!;!(solicitor 

a GIS 

REVIEWED WITH: 

External Agencies: 

D Library Board 

D NS Health 

D RCMP 

0 Recreation Commission 

0 Other: 

REVIEWED WITH: 

Advisory Committees: 

a 
a ----~--------~ 

0 
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The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver 

Bylaw 7975 

A bylaw to amend the Development Servicing Bylaw 7388 (2005) 

The Council for The Corporation of the District of North Vancouver enacts as follows: 

1. Citation 

1.1 This bylaw may be cited as "Development Servicing Bylaw 7388, 2005, Amendment 
Bylaw 7975, 2012 (Amendment 4)". 

2. Amendments 

2.1 Schedule D.1 - Section 'B' of the Development Servicing Bylaw 7388 (2005) is 
amended by: 

(a) deleting the existing "Highway Classification Map - Figure B1 " and replacing it 
with the map attached to this amending bylaw as Schedule A; and 

(b) deleting the existing "Table B1 - Road Classification" and replacing it with the 
table attached to this amending bylaw as Schedule B. 

READ a first time this the 

READ a second time this the 

READ a third time this the 

ADOPTED this the 

Mayor Municipal Clerk 

Certified a true copy 

Municipal Clerk 
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SUBJECT: Development Servicing Bylaw Amendment- Road Classification 
January 15, 2013 Page 4 

SCHEDULE A 

HIGHWAY CLASSIFICATION MAP 

~ 
DISTRICT OF 

NORTH VANCOUVER 
ROADWAY CLASSIFICATION MAP 

-- ltiGHWAY 
--MAJOA ARTERIAl 
-- MINOR ARTERIAL 

COlLECTOR 
lOCAL 

-- RURAl 
ACCESS 
PAIVA I'£ 

"*-MD tf•;( ... tt JJf1 

~ 
_ ,..! ........ ,. 
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SUBJECT: Development Servicing Bylaw Amendment- Road Classification 
January 15, 2013 Page 5 

SCHEDULE B 

TABLE B1- ROAD CLASSIFICATION 

Arterial 

Features Local Collector 
Minor Major 

Rural 

Arterial Arterial 

Expected 
traffic 5,000- 10,000-
volume <1 ,500 1 ,000-8,000 <2,000 
(daily 

20,000 50,000 

vehicles) 
Speed limit 

30-50 30-50 50-60 50-60 30-50 
(km/h) 

passenger passenger 
passenger 

and 
Vehicle type and service and service all types all types 

service vehicles vehicles vehicles 
locals, collectors, collectors, lanes, 

Desirable lanes, collectors, major and major and locals, 

connections locals, major and minor minor collectors, 
collectors minor 

arterials 
arterials, minor 

arterials Highway arterials 
Transit generally permitted permitted permitted avoided 
service avoided 

Bicycle no no 
separate separate no 
facilities 

access restrictions restrictions 
desirable 

facilities restrictions 

sidewalks sidewalks on 
sidewalks 

sidewalks on Pedestrian 
on one side both sides on both both sides no 

access 
desirable desirable sides required 

restrictions 
desirable 

preferred 

Driveway over 
collectors if limited limited not permitted limited 

access lanes are 
not available 
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North Vancouver Arts Office 

REPORT TO THE DISTRICT OF NORTH VANCOUVER 

January 2is~ 2013 File: 10.4794.901001.000 

AUTHORS: John Rice, Cultural Development Officer. 

SUBJECT: Core Funding I Operating Support Grants for Arts Organizations: Release of First 
Instalment on 2013 Grant. 

RECOMMENDATION. 

It is recommended: 

1. THAT the four recognized, core-funded arts organizations be approved to receive a first 
instalment on their 2013 Core Funding I Operating Support Grants; 

2. THAT this first round of 2013 payments, being equivalent to 50% of the groups' 2012 
grants and totaling $317,492, be approved in accordance with Council policy; 

3. THAT the District's portion of this interim instalment, totalling $148,746 in operating grants, 
be approved for release to the City of North Vancouver; 

4. AND THAT the balance of the 2013 Core Funding I Operating Support grants be disbursed 
in full in June, following Council's final approval of the budget; 

REASON FOR REPORT. 

To secure release of a first instalment of 2013 Core Funding I Operating Support grants to the 
four core-funded arts agencies in North Vancouver: (1) the North Vancouver Community Arts 
Council; (2) Presentation House Gallery; (3) Presentation House Theatre; and (4) the Seymour 
Art Gallery. 

EXISTING POLICY. 

Operational Support for Major Arts Organizations; 5-1850-7 (2003). 
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SUBJECT: Core Funding I Operating Support Grants for Arts Organizations: Release of First 
Instalment on 2013 Grant. 

January 21st, 2013 Page 2 

SUMMARY. 

Core Funding consists of a combination of Operating Support Grants and Facility Grants in lieu of 
rent. The District and City of North Vancouver recognize four core-funded arts organizations that 
operate municipally owned arts facilities, and that provide core arts and cultural services for the 
residents of North Vancouver. These groups are: 

(1) North Vancouver Community Arts Council; 

(2) BC Photography and Media Arts Gallery (operating as Presentation House Gallery); 

(3) Presentation House Cultural Society (operating as Presentation House Theatre); and 

(4) Seymour Art Gallery. 

Core Funding Policy I Peer Assessment: Operating Support Grants are reviewed every three 
years by an independent panel (or jury) of peer experts. The role of the peer jury is to provide 
the municipalities with recommendations in respect of funding priorities, and to propose a stable 
grants baseline for the duration of a three-year funding cycle. 

The last peer review took place in November 2010. The jury's funding recommendations at that 
time were adopted in the 2011 budget, and established the current level of core grant support 
for the 201 1, 2012 and 2013 fiscal years. This report does not bring forward any changes or 
increases to the level of support that was established in 2011. 

The current three-year funding cycle ends in 2013. A peer jury review of Operating Support 
Grants will be scheduled in the fall to provide Councils with recommendations for the upcoming 
2014-15-16 funding cycle. 

Calculation of Interim Support: As outlined in policy, core-funded arts organizations generally 
receive a first instalment on their operating grant (referred to as interim funding) early in the 
calendar year, while the balance of grant funds are disbursed upon final approval of municipal 
budgets. Interim funding is calculated at 50% of the previous year's approved grant. 

AUachment A provides a detailed breakdown of Core Operating Grants and Facility Grants by 
organization. The District's portion of the interim payments consists of $148,746 in direct 
Operating Grants plus an add itional $10,000 in Faci lity Grants (in lieu of rent); the City's portion 
consists of $103,754 in Operating Grants and $54,992 in Facility Grants. 

BACKGROUND: Re-Instatement of BC Gaming Grants. 

In early 2012 the Province announced that adult arts and cultural programs would again be 
eligible for support. On very short notice, prior to the close of the 2011 fiscal year, a "special" 
grant intake was put together in February 2012. Shortly thereafter a regular intake was re­
established for the 2012-13 fiscal year. 
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As a result of the re-opening of the BC Gaming Grants program, over $445,000 was immediately 
re-invested through the special intake, providing invaluable support for arts programming to a 
wide range of North Shore groups who had not received Gaming support in the previous two 
years. In 2012-13 the level of continuing support to the North Shore does not lag far behind at 
over $435,000. 

ANALYSIS: Report on the Operating Position of Core-Funded Arts Groups. 

In light of the many challenges created by the provincial funding cuts, it is important to report 
that all four of the core-funded groups in North Vancouver have had their BC Gaming grants 
restored, either at established (pre-cut) or at improved levels. The following table summarizes 
BC Gaming grants received by the four core-funded groups. 

SPECIAL INTAKE REGULAR INTAKE 
2011-12 2012-13 

North Vancouver Community Arts Council $ 56,000 $ 50,000 

Presentation House Gallery $ 45,000 $ 50,000 

Presentation House Theatre $ 37,600 $ 38,000 

Seymour Art Gallery $ 35,000 $ 35,000 

North Vancouver Community Arts Council: The Arts Council continues to introduce a range of 
new programs and services, focussing largely on community-engaged arts practices, but 
including also a range of new and distinctive arts presentation programs. Having added a 
secure e-commerce capability to the website in 2012, business plan priorities for 2013 include: 
improved signage, expanded art rental storage and improved customer service supported by 
appropriate staffing levels. At the end of its 2010- 11 and 2011-12 fiscal years the Arts Council 
posted modest operating surpluses, and continues to maintain a healthy balance in operating 
reserves and restricted funds. 

Presentation House Gallery: The Gallery continues to work closely with the City to relocate to the 
waterfront and is actively exploring options on the site of the Cates Shed building. Having 
completed a fundraising feasibility study in late 2011, the Gallery is confident of its capacity to 
embark on a major capital campaign and has recently selected an architect to develop design 
concepts for the new space. In addition, the Gallery has recently engaged a consultant to assist 
in the development of an operational business plan that reflects the future situation of the 
Gallery. At the end of its 2012 fiscal year (not yet closed) the Gallery projects a modest surplus, 
and - per the society's 2011 Financial Statements- continues to maintain a healthy balance in 
operating reserves together with a small but important balance in a dedicated building fund. 

Presentation House Theatre: In late 2010 Councils for the District and City of North Vancouver 
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provided the Theatre with one-time emergency funding of $50,000. As a condition of support 
for its $25,000 contribution District Council required the Theatre to develop a business plan 
towards operational sustainability. This plan was reviewed by the Finance & Audit Committee 
in 2011 before District Council agreed to approve ongoing support for the Theatre. 

At the regular meeting of November 5th, 2012, new Artistic Director Kim Selody presented an 
update to District Council on the current financial position and latest business planning and 
programming initiatives at the Theatre. 

Triggered in part by cuts to BC Gaming grants in 2009 and 2010, in 2013 Presentation House 
Theatre continues to operate with a significant accumulated deficit. At year end for 2011-12 
(its most recent completed fiscal year), the Theatre registered another large deficit, bringing its 
accumulated deficit at the moment to $77,000. Attachment B provides a detailed review of 
operating and balance statements for the Theatre over a five-year period starting in fiscal year 
2007-08. 

As Mr. Selody reported to Council in November, the past 18 months have seen a number of 
changes at Presentation House Theatre. In August 2011, the new management team, headed 
by Mr. Selody, immediately set about a review of the Theatre's most urgent operating and 
programming challenges. Important work has progressed on a number of fronts. 

Building Management: As one of the ongoing roles of the society, in addition to running the 
theatre space, has been to manage the heritage Presentation House building on behalf of the 
City and the other tenants (including Presentation House Gallery and the North Vancouver 
Museum), the Theatre has worked very closely with the City in 2012 to find ways of mitigating 
the impacts of building and maintenance costs on its operational capacity as a producing and 
presenting theatre. 

Space Planning: With both of the other tenants on a path to relocate on the waterfront, it is 
important that the Theatre plan for the transitional and future use, design and operation of the 
building. In 2013 it has secured project support from the City to develop a business plan and 
space reconfiguration plan that will best serve their future needs. 

Programming Mix: 2012-13 marks the first season under the leadership of new Artistic Director, 
Kim Selody. Following disappointing box office results in the previous year, Mr. Selody has 
almost completely re-focussed the Theatre's program mix and has created: new music and 
dance series (through partnerships with Capilano University and local dance presenters); a 
family theatre series targeted at young audiences and marketed directly to school audiences; 
and an (adult) theatre series that has a greater emphasis on audience accessibility. Early 
indicators are positive: at this stage in the year (approximately half-way through the 2012-13 
season), paid attendances are running at 70% of capacity, while box office revenues are at 75% 
of the budget projections for the year. 
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Community Partnerships: The Theatre has been very energetic in developing partnerships with 
groups such as North Shore Connexions and North Shore Neighbourhood House that are 
designed to improve access and to offer opportunities for new audiences to become involved 
with the theatre. For example, with the support of corporate sponsorship the Theatre's 'Take 
Your Seat' program has provided outreach and access to members of the seniors' population 
who may not otherwise have been able to experience live theatre. 

Corporate Support: For the past couple of years, Presentation House Theatre has been the 
recipient for the Chamber of Commerce Gala Fund raiser. Not only has this helped to boost the 
society's fundraising revenues (last year's gala realized in excess of $85,000), but it has been 
just as important to the Theatre in terms of building ongoing relationships. It is a direct result of 
the Theatre's improved corporate relationships, for example, that each show now features a 
presenting sponsor. 

As Mr. Selody acknowledged in his report to Council in November, there can be no doubt that 
Presentation House Theatre continues to face considerable financial challenges. However, the 
signs are clear that Theatre is being professionally managed and the above indicators begin to 
suggest a clear vision moving forward. 

Seymour Art Gallery: In 2011 and 2012 the Seymour Art Gallery has largely redefined its role 
as a local, community art gallery. While it continues to act as a showcase for the many talented 
local artists, and continues to host a range of popular, annual shows and gift galleries, the 
Gallery: has introduced a series of guest-curated shows featuring the work and participation of 
well-known regional and international artists; has developed a mix of community-engagement 
workshops and other activities that are integrated into all exhibits; and has established a unique 
new music program. 

As a result, the Gallery has generated a new regional profile that has enabled them to build new 
audiences beyond the confines of the Seymour area , while remaining committed to serving the 
interests of local artists. Operationally, the Gallery is in as solid a position as it has been for a 
while. At the close of 2011, the Gallery registered a very modest deficit. However, that balance 
did not include the special intake BC Gaming grant which was received after the Gallery closed 
off its fiscal year. At the close of 2012, the Gallery projects a sizeable operating surplus. 

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS. 

The total projected budget for Core Funding in 2012 is $634,983, consisting of $505,000 in 
Operating Grants and $129,983 in Facility Grants. This figure includes zero grant increases to 
the core-funded groups and is within the projected Arts Office budget for the year. 

Risk/Liability: As municipal budgets for the year have not yet been approved, the advance of 
interim funding precludes the municipalities' ability to completely eliminate these grants in the 
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Financial Plan, but does allow some flexibi lity to adjust in response to budget priorities. 

Timing: Release of funds is requested as soon as possible in the calendar year. Without the 
advance of interim support, arts organizations may face hardship in financing their first six 
months of operation without an appropriate indicator of support from the municipalities. 

Reporting Requirements: Policy requires that core-funded agencies provide an annual report, 
including detailed budget reports and audited financial statements. Each of the organizations 
subject to this report has met its reporti ng requirements, and their statements have been 
reviewed by Arts Office staff. Additional f inancial information has been provided to the Finance 
Department in respect of Presentation House Theatre. 

Concurrence: The recommendation to release funds at this time has been reviewed by the 
District's Finance Department. Release of funds requires Council approval. 

CULTURAL PLAN I POLICY IMPLICATIONS. 

The provision of operating and facility grants to agencies responsible for the programming of 
arts spaces and cultural facilities is integral to the realization of a number of goals and benefits 
common to both the District and City. Arts facilities, galleries and performing arts venues are 
recognized as the basis of a vibrant arts and culture sector in respect of: quality of life, cultural 
development, community identity, sense of place and cultural tourism. 

John Rice, Cultural Development Officer 

Attachments. 

A. Core/Operating Support for Arts Organizations: Calculation of Interim Support 2013. 

B. Presentation House Theatre: Annual Financial Review, 2008-present. 
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CORE/OPERATING SUPPORT FOR MAJOR ARTS ORGANIZATIONS 
CALCULATION OF FIRST INSTALMENT /INTERIM FUNDING, 2013 
Prepared by the Arts Office 

I 2012 ACTUAL 

CNV DNV 

North Vancouver Community Arts Council I 
Operating Grant, Arts Council 53,450 69,050 

Operating Grant, Cityscape Community Art Space 41,250 41,250 
Facil ity Grant in Lieu of Rent 15,600 

Core Funding Support to Organization 110,300 110,300 

BC Photography & Media Arts Society I 
Operating Grant, Presentation House Gallery 64,635 80,366 

Facility Grant in Lieu of Rent 15,731 
Core Funding Support to Organization 80,366 80,366 

Presentation House Cultural Society I 
Operating Grant, Presentation House Theatre 18,174 96,826 

Facility Grant in Lieu of Rent 78,652 
Core Funding Support to Organization 96,826 96,826 

Seymour Art Gallery I 
Operating Grant, Seymour Art Gallery 30,000 10,000 

Facility Grant in Lieu of Rent 20,000 
Core Funding Support to Organization 30,000 30,000 

I TOTAL GRANT SUPPORT I 
Operating Grant Support, TOTAL 207,509 297,492 

Facility Grants in Lieu of Rent. TOTAL 109,983 20,000 
Core Funding Support to Arts Organizations, TOTAL 317,492 317.492 

II 
Combined 

122,500 
82,500 
15,600 

220,600 

145,000 
15,731 

160,731 

115,000 
78,652 

193,652 

40,000 
20,000 
60,000 

505,000 
129,983 
634,983 

ffilTiffil~~~~~i A 
c 
Cl>~ 
E('l') 

II I 
--INTERIM FUNDING -o 

2013 BUDGET 
@50% OF 2012 ~~ 

- c 
- "' Cl)..., 
~ ~ 

CNV DNV Combined CNV DNV Combined u: 
I 

53,450 69,050 122,500 26,725 34,525 61.250 
41.250 1 41,250 82,500 20,625 20,625 41,250 102,500 
15,600 15,600 7,800 1 7,800 

110,300 110,300 220,600 55.150 I 55,150 110,300 

64,635 80,366 145,000 32,317 40,183 72,500 72,500 
15,731 15.731 7,866 7,866 
80,366 80,366 160,731 40,183 40,183 80,366 

I 

18,174 96,826 115,000 9,087 48,413 57,500 57,500 
78,652 78,652 39,326 39,326 
96,826 96,826 193,652 48,413 48,413 96,826 

30,000 10,000 40,000 15,000 5,000 20,000 20,000 
20,000 20,000 10,000 10,000 

30,000 30,000 60,000 15,000 15,000 30,000 

I 

207.509 256,242 505,000 103,754 148.746 252,500 252,500 
109,983 20,000 129,983 54,992 10,000 64,992 I 

317.492 I 317,492 634,983 158.746 158.746 317,492 
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~TI~~~~~~y B. 
PRESENTATION HOUSE THEATRE 
Annual Financial Review 
Prepared for the City and District of North Vancouver by the Arts Office 

GRANT YEAR 2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 
Fiscal Year Reported 2007-08 2008-09 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

Revenues 
Core Operating Grant 97,348 102,628 102,628 115,000 115,000 

Emergency Support (2010-11) 50,000 
Facility Grant in Lieu of Rent 86,517 86,517 86,517 86,517 86,517 

OCA Project Grants 3,000 12,850 4,000 14,500 
BC Arts Council 9,500 12,000 18,000 

BC Gaming Grants 38,000 38,000 6,750 37,600 
Special Project Grants I APCD 95,000 75,000 64,920 

Canada Council 14,000 
Other Government Sector Grants 4,772 10,943 14,936 18,845 43,129 

Foundation Grants 1,000 10,000 12,000 
Fundraising I Events 34,730 40,886 21,797 54,672 94,342 
Corporate Sponsors 3,704 

Box Office 48,105 55,030 46,454 55,891 27,617 
Ticket Surcharge 19,760 
Theatre Rentals 67,628 70,941 78,005 53,939 33,239 
Studio Rentals 21,488 25,895 20,494 23,526 21,790 

Theatre Bar 25,768 24,998 24,083 12,792 10,429 
Management Fees I Shared Cost Contributions 124,325 118,783 52,432 

Memberships 220 855 650 
Bank Interest 2,481 103 381 

Other 972 436 1,672 10,122 12,891 
Adjustments for Reporting Variances 2,701 1,459 3,014 -254 2,966 

663,555 687,324 589,447 502,300 485,520 

Expenditures 
Rent 86,517 86,517 86,517 86,517 86,517 

Building & Grounds Contribution 33,533 33,533 
Salaries & Fees 158,701 175,668 184,020 193,774 198,059 
Administration 31,410 48,316 52,395 52,628 38,638 

Administration - Photocopier 35,069 34,341 7,430 5,525 10,446 
Production Costs 197,962 228,937 215,887 102,865 150,348 

Bar Wages & Supplies 24,442 25,778 23,734 16,455 9,152 
Building Management & Maintenance 88,459 89,663 41,305 34,909 13,251 

Other 1,062 1,458 10,711 
Adjustments for Reporting Variances 0 0 161 0 0 

656,093 722,753 612,511 494,131 517,122 

OPERATING SURPLUS I DEFICIT 7,462 -35,429 -23,064 8,169 -31,602 
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GRANT 2010 2011 2012 
Fiscal Year Reported 2009-10 2010-11 2011-12 

CASH BALANCE - OPEN 9,092 59,106 42,780 -7.747 72,522 
CASH BALANCE- YEAR END 59,106 .42,780 -7.747 72,522 58,392 

Net Cash Flow on Year 50,014 -16,326 -50,527 80,269 -14, 130 

BALANCE SHEET 
Cash 59,106 42.780 0 72,522 58,392 

Accounts Receivable 8,462 46,954 10,077 12,276 13,630 
Prepaid Expenses 3,361 4,850 14,212 6,239 13,037 

Capital Assets 3,129 4,092 84,980 
ASSETS 70,929 94,584 27,418 95,129 170,039 

Accounts Payable 13,650 7,662 18,321 16,707 26,642 
Deferred Revenues 55,338 85,410 43,489 103,894 220,592 

Bank Overdraft 7,747 
Line of Credit 0 35,000 18,093 20,846 0 

Restricted - Brenda Leadley Fund 725 
Net Operating Fund 1,941 -33,488 -60,232 -46,318 -77,920 

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS 70,929 94,584 27,418 95,129 170,039 
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ALAN F. SAUCIER INC. 
----~- --

CIIAKf~RIIl A< COliN fANT 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

To the Board of Directors: 

Report on the Financial Statements 

Suite 202 

I 075 Wcsr First Srrcct 

North Vancouver, R.C. 
V7P 3T4 

604-/986·9577 

604/986-9581 (I' AX I 

ahm®alansaucicr .ca 

I have audited the accompanying financial statements ofPresentation House Cultural Society, which 
comprise the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2012, and the statement of operations, 
statement of changes in net assets and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and a summaty of 
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information. 

Management's Responsibility fo r the Financial Statements 
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financia l statements in 
accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Principles, and for such internal control as 
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's Responsibility 
My responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on my audit. 1 conducted 
my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Those standards require 
that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

An audit involves perfonning procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of 
the entity's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the 
overall presentation of the financial statements. 

I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my 
audit ·opinion. 

Opinion 
In my opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of 
Presentation House Cultura l Society as at June 30, 2012, and its financial perfonnance and its cash flows 
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian Generally Accepted Accounting Standards. 

No11h Vancouver, B.C. 
November I, 2012 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 
AS AT JUNE 30,2012 

2012 2011 

ASSETS 

CURRENT 
Cash $ 58,392 $ 72,522 
Accounts receivable 13,630 12,276 
Prepaid expenses 13,037 6,239 

85,059 91,037 

CAPITAL ASSETS (Note 4) 84,980 4,092 

$ 170,039 $ 95,129 

LIABILITIES 

CURRENT 
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 5) $ 26,642 $ 16,707 
Deferred revenue (Note 6) 220,592 103,894 
Bank demand loan (Note 7) 20,846 

247,234 141,447 

BRENDA LEADLAY FUND (Note 8) 725 

247,959 141,447 

NET ASSETS 

DEFICIT (77,920) (46,318) 

$ 170,039 $ 95,129 

Note disclosures are an integral component of the financial statements. 

,\1.\N I. S.\\1< 1111. I>Jc. 
t 11 ,\ri II:\ I I• At i t) l N I \N 1 

118



PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,.2012 

2012 

REVENUE 
ARTS CENTRE 

Grants (Note 9) $ 86,517 
Management fee 

86,517 

THEATRE 
Grants 161,095 
BC Gaming 37,600 
Box office 27,617 
Rent - theatre 33,239 
Rent- Anne MacDonald Studio 21,790 
Bar 10,429 
Fundraising and donations 94,342 
Membership, interest, theatre camp, other earned revenue 12,891 

399,003 

TOTAL REVENUE $ 485,520 

EXPENSES 
ARTS CENTRE 

Rent (Note 9) 86,517 

THEATRE 
Administration 38,638 
Amortization 10,711 
Bar supplies and wages 9,152 
Building and grounds- custodian and maintenance 13,251 
Postage and photocopier 10,446 
Production 150,348 
Salaries and fees 198,059 

430,605 

TOTAL EXPENSES 517,122 

EXCESS OF (EXPENSES OVER REVENUES) 
REVENUES OVER EXPENSES $ (31,602) 

Note disclosures are an integral component of the financial statements. 
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2011 

$ 86,517 
2,362 

88,879 

195,729 ~~J._ 
6,750 

L 55,891 zg 
53,939 ?-1 J_ 
23,526 
12,792 

'$CJ l. 54,672 
10,122 

413,421 

$ 502,300 

86,517 

52,628 
1,458 

16,455 
34,909 

5,525 

471 102,865 
193,774 

407,614 

494,131 

$ 8,169 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
STATEMENT O.F NET ASSETS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 

EXCESS OF (EXPENSES OVER REVENUES) 
REVENUE OVER EXPENSES 

NET ASSETS, end of year 

,, I \ " I s \ l' ( II (( I :-1 c. 
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2012 2011 

(46,318) $ (54,487) 

(3 I ,602) 8,169 

(77,920) $ (46,3 I&) 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED .JUNE 30, 2012 

2012 2011 

OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Excess of (expenses over revenue) 

revenues over expenses for the year $ (31 ,602) $ 8,169 
ltems not involving cash: 

Amortization of capital assets 10,711 1,458 

(20,891) 9,627 
Changes in non-cash working capital: 

(Increase) in accounts receivable (1,354) (2, 199) 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses (6,798) 7,973 
Increase in accounts payable and accrued liabilities 9,934 4,131 
Increase in deferred revenue 116,698 60,405 

97,589 79,937 

INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Purchase of capita l assets (91,598) (2,421) 

FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
Net (repayments of) proceeds from demand loan (20,846) 2,753 
Cash received for Brenda Leadlay Fund 725 

(20, 121) 2,753 

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH {14,130) 80,269 

CASH (BANK OVERDRAFT), beginning of year 72,522 (7,747) 

CASH, end of year $ 58,392 $ 72,522 

Note disclosures are an integral component of the financial statements. 

Cash includes: 
Cash $ 57,392 $ 71,522 
Term deposit 1.000 1.000 

$ 58.392 $ 72.522 

The Society recorded non-cash revenue of $86,5 17 for a grant in lieu of rent and a cotTesponding rental 
expense of $86,517 (Note 9). The Society is not subject to income taxes. 

4 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2012 

1. Operations 

Presentation House Cultural Society ("the Society") provides creative programming in the 
performing arts, educational programming and management of the Presentation House Arts Centre 
("Arts Centre") in North Vancouver, British Columbia. The Arts Centre is owned by the City of 
North Vancouver, which leases the property to three tenants: Presentation House Cultural Society, 
Presentation House Gallery and North Vancouver Museum. A grant is provided to the tenants in 
lieu of paying rent. The City is responsible for all structural improvements, while the tenants are 
responsible for all other repairs and maintenance. The Arts Centre is managed by the Society on 
behalf of the other tenants, which are charged for reimbursement of expenses to maintain the 
building and grounds. 

Additionally the Society operates a theatre company that produces and presents programming both 
individually and in partnership with other groups. TI1e Society also rents out its theatre space and 
Anne MacDonald Studio for rehearsals and performance. 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

As a not-for-profit society, the Society may select whether to adopt one of two sets of accounting 
standards in the Accounting Handbook ("Handbook") issued by the Accounting Standards Board 
("AcSB") under the auspices of the Canadian Institute of Chartered Accountants ( "CICA") for the 
year ending June 30, 2012: 

(i) Part III of the Handbook specifically provides Accounting Standards for Not-for-Profit 
Organizations. Adherence to these recently-issued standards is not required until fiscal years 
commencing on or after January 1, 2012. However, early adoption of Part Ill is permitted. 

(ii) Part V of the Handbook includes "P~e-Changeover" generally accepted accounting principles 
("GAAP") for all 'entities, including a section specifically for not-for-profit organizations. These are 
the standards that the Society has adopted in prior years. 

The Society has elected to continue applying the accounting standards provided in PartY of the 
Handbook for the year ending June 30, 2012. 

(a) Revenue recognition 

The Society follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions. 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(a) Revenue recognition (continued) 

Externally restricted grants and donations are recognized as revenue in the fiscal year in 
which the specified expenses are incurred. Unrestricted grants and donations are recognized 
as revenue when received or receivable if the amount can be reasonably estimated and 
collection is reasonably assured. Earned revenue from box office or rentals are recognized as 
revenue in the fiscal year in which the productions or rentals occur. 

(b) Contributed services 

Volunteers contribute time to assist the Society in carrying out its activities. Because the fair 
value of contributed services cannot be reliably determined, they are not recognized in the 
financial statements. 

(c) Capital assets 

Amortization of capital assets is provided over the useful life of the assets on the following 
basis: 

Computer equipment 
Office furniture & equipment 
Theatre equipment 

Straight line over 3 years 
Straight line over 5 year 
Straight line over 5 years 

The provision for amortization is reduced by one-half in the year of acquisition. 

(d) Deferred revenue 

Grants and donations received for a restricted purpose or for a specific fiscal year are 
recorded as deferred revenue until expenses have been incurred for the restricted purpose or 
within the specified fiscal year, as the case may be. Grants and donations with the restricted 
purpose of acquiring capital assets are amortized as revenue at the same rate as the acquired 
capital assets are amortized as expense. 

(e) Income taxes 

The Sociery is not subject to income taxes. Accordingly, no provision for income taxes has 
been made in these financial statements. 

(f) Related party transactions 

Related party transactions in the normal course of business are recorded at the exchange 
value. 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

2. Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 

(g) Use of estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian Generally Accepted 
Accounting Principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the repo1ted amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent liabilities at the 
date of the financial statements. Estimates also affect the reported amounts of revenues and 
expenses during the repotting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

3. Financial Instruments 

Financial instruments consist of cash, short-tenn cash ce1titicates, accounts receivable, accounts 
payable and accrued liabilities, and demand bank loan. The fair value of the instruments 
approximates their carrying values due to their short-term maturity. 

4. Capital Assets 
2012 2011 

Accumulated Net Net 
Cost Amortization Book Value Book Value 

Computer equipment $ 2,424 $ 2,004 $ 420 $ 1,038 
Office furniture & equipment 1,807 542 1,265 1,626 
Theatre equipment 21.4~5 11 '16Q 83.295 1.428 

$ 98,686 $ 13.706 $ 84.980 $ 4.092 

5. Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities include the following: 

2012 2011 

Accounts payable (trade) $ 14,315 $ 15,971 
Salaries payable 6,848 4,042 
Payroll withholdings payable 7,174 4,685 
Box office receipts held in trust 7,465 
GST/HST (receivable) payable (9.160) (7,991) 

$ 26 642 $ 16.707 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

6. 

7. 

Deferred Revenue 
2012 20 11 

Operating grants: 
North Vancouver Arts Commission $ 57 500 $ 

Project grants: 
AtisfACT 10,000 10,000 
BC Arts Council 13,000 25,000 
BC Gaming Direct Access 38,000 
City ofNorth Vancouver 11,000 11,000 
Hamber Foundation 1,500 1,500 
VanCity Savings Credit Union 5,000 
Box office revenue 124 
Rent revenue 1,735 
Summer theatre camp 670 1.494 

Total project grants 74.294 55.729 
Capital grants: 

Department of Canadian Heritage 43,348 48,165 
City ofNorth Vancouver 45.450 

To1al capital grants 88.798 48.165 
$ 220.592 $ 103.894 

Grants for the purchase of capital assets are deferred until the capital assets have been acquired. 
The grants are subsequently recognized as revenue at the same rate as the capital assets are 
amortized as expense. 

Bank demand loan 

The Society obtained an unsecured business operating loan by way of a revolv ing line of credit with 
VanCity Credit Union. Approved limit is $35,000, interest rate is VanCity Prime+ 3%, which was 
6.0% at June 30,2012. The balance atJune 30,2012 was $nil (2011- $20,846). 

8. Brenda Lead lay Fund 

During the year the Society initiated the Brenda Leadlay Fund ("the Fund"). The Fund was funded 
by donations restricted for that purpose. The Fund will be used to award a theatre professional who 
is an exceptional artistic talent committed to arts advocacy and the creation of innovative theatre 
work. The te1ms and conditions of the Fund have not yet been determined, nor has the Society 
established when the first award will take place. Therefore the Fund has been disclosed as a long­
term liability on the Statement of Financial Position. 
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PRESENTATION HOUSE CULTURAL SOCIETY 
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2012 

9. Non-cash transactions 

As described in Note I, the Society is a tenant of a facility owned by the City of North Vancouver. 
During the year the City of North Vancouver charged the Society rent of $86,5 17 (20 II - $86,517), 
which was waived by way of a grant in lieu of rent for the same amount. This non-cash transaction 
records an economic event with an arm's-length third party and has been recorded on the Statement of 
Operations at the agreed-upon amou nts between the Society and the City of North Vancouver. 

10. Commitments 

The Society is obligated under the lease for a photocopier for quarterly payments of $1,565 including 
applicable taxes under a 66-month contract expiring September I 0, 2016. The Society is also 
obligated under a lease for a postage meter for annual payments of $733 including applicable taxes 
under a 2-year contract expiring October 2013. The annual lease payments for the next five years are 
as follows: 

2013 
2014 
2015 
2016 
2017 

$ 6,994 
6,261 
6,261 
6,261 
1,565 

The Society leases premises from the City of North Vancouver under a five-year agreement expiring 
December 31, 2014. As described in Note 9, the City of North Vancouver waives cash payment of 
rent by way of a grant in lieu. 

11 . Risk 

The Society is exposed to business risk common in not-for-profit societies that rely on government 
grants and donations to fund its activities. 

The Society is exposed to a moderate level of interest rate risk and credit risk, as it periodically relies 
on the bank demand loan to fund its activities. As described in Note 7, the demand loan has a 
$35,000 maximum and carries a variable interest rate. 

The Society is not exposed to a significant level of currency exchange risk, as few of its transactions 
are can·ied out in foreign currencies. 

9 
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11:46 PM 
01122113 
Accrual Basis 

Presentation House Cultural Society 
Profit & Loss 

July through December 2012 

Ordinary Income/Expense 

Income 

Theatre Grant Revenue 

Project Grants 

Embrace BC 

Canada Arts Council 

City of North Vancouver 

Deferred Revenue 

BC Arts Council 

Total Project Grants 

Operating Grants 

District of West Vancouver 

Employment Grants 

BCGamlng 

North Vancouver· Operating 

Total Operating Grants 

Total Theatre Grant Revenue 

Theatre Earned Revenue 

Box Office 

School Sales 

Ticket Surcharge 

Ticket Sales 

Arts Pass 

Box Office • Other 

Total Box Office 

Other Earned Revenue 

Mise Theatre Earned Revenue 

AMS and Theatre Rentals 

Guaranteed Fees/ Touring Fees 

Advertising Revenue 

Total Other Earned Revenue 

Total Theatre Earned Revenue 

Fund Development 

Individual 

Corporate Sponsorships 

Special Events 

Foundation & Other Grants 

Total Fund Development 

Buildings & Grounds 

Gallery Contribution 

Museum Cont.ribution 

Total Buildings & Grounds 

Total Income 

Gross Profit 

ACTUALS Jul · Dec 12 

2.500.00 

24.300.00 

35,500.00 

15.000.00 

77,300.00 

1,500.00 

5,613.00 

38,000.00 

57,500.00 

102,613.00 

179,913.00 

2.698.23 

3,931.91 

37,266.40 

2,678.58 

-314.00 

46,261 .12 

9,433.82 

10,068.52 

1.478.57 

20,980.91 

67,242.03 

3.219.88 

31 ,500.00 

4,119.00 

1,000.00 

39,838.88 

14.286.50 

21,524.25 

35,810.75 

322,804.66 

322.804.66 

BUDGET 

2,500 

24 ,300 

15,000 

35,500 

15,000 

92 ,300 

1,500 

5,613 

38,000 

115.000 

160,113 

252.413 

6,000 

12,000 

39,600 

5,000 

62,600 

20,406 

25,058 

20,306 

1,500 

67.270 

129.870 

12,500 

41.000 

63,275 

48,000 

164,775 

28,698 

28,698 

57.396 

604,454 

604,454 

Page 1 of 3 127



11:46 PM 
01/22/13 
Accrual Basis 

Presentation House Cultural Society 
Profit & Loss 

July through December 2012 

ACTUALS JUI· Dec 12 

Expense 

Marketing & Communications 

Development expense 200.00 

Media Advertising 1,170.00 

Publicity 2,953.64 

Print Advertising 4,220.79 

Display & Supplies 1,779.25 

Graphic Design 3,555.00 

Total Marketing & Communications 13,878.68 

Production Expenses 

Commission Fees/ Royalties 5,770.63 

lighting, Sound, Projection 379.10 

Sets, Props, Costumes 2,931.52 

Theatre Maini/Seasonal Supplies 208.00 

Opening Night Expenses 250.00 

Rental/Freight/Shipping 251.91 

Accommedatlons & Per Diem 2,250.00 

Venue te·ch 5,729.36 

Equipment Rentals 1,327.00 

Equipment R&M 195.00 

Honorarium 150.00 

Workshop Fees & Expenses 600.00 

Design fees 15,154.00 

Artist Fees 33.292.70 

Director's Fee 4,636.11 

Stage Management Fees 5,665.09 

Technicians & Hands 4,659.00 

Miscellaneous Prduction Expense 774.34 

Co-Pro/Guest Company expenses 11,013.55 

Theatre Camp. expenses 260.00 

Total Production Expenses 95,497.31 

Theatre/ AMS Salaries & Fees 

AD, MD, and PM/TO 44,513.02 

Marketing Director 21 ,150.00 

Box Office • FOH Manager 9,863.24 

Box Office Casual 303.16 

Administrator 13,796.40 

Total Theatre/ AMS Salaries & Fees 89,625.82 

Administrative Expenses 

Employee Benefits 2.697.24 

EI,CPP,WCB 6,819.38 

Audit 5,308.75 

Bookkeeper Fees 5,895.00 

Bank Charges/ Credit Card Fees 3,227.89 

Board/Society Expenses 979.95 

Courier 72.00 

Telecommunications 652.08 

Gift Tool fees 580.78 

Equipment- R&M 491.75 

Office Supplies 1,445.66 

Staff Costs 2,411.64 

Memberships & Subscriptions 975.00 

Volunteer Expenses 25.00 

Theatre Manager 1,345.00 

.. 

BUDGET 

400 

2,500 

4.750 

14,500 

1,500 

3,500 

27 ,150 

7,490 

4,800 

12,550 

1,000 

1,500 

2,350 

11.125 

2,148 

1,000 

250 

775 

23,600 

54,600 

9,416 

10,998 

10,345 

825 

14,125 

450 

169,347 

105,525 

33,750 

12,590 

905 

24,225 

176,995 

6,175 

12,000 

5,800 

10,000 

6,725 

1,750 

500 

2,250 

1,250 

1,000 

1,500 

4,750 

800 

500 

1,250 
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01/22113 
Accrual Basis 

Presentation House Cultural Society 
Profit & Loss 

July through December 2012 

Theatre General Supplies 

Miscellaneous Admin Expens&s 

Artistic Director's Fund 

CNV Rent 

Other Expense -Suspense 

Managing Director's Outreach 

Administrative Expenses -Other 

Total Administrative Expenses 

B & G Expenses 

Utilities 

Custodian 

Miscellaneous B&G -expenses 

Staff Costs 

Equipment- Purchase I R & M 

General Maintenance Supplies 

Janitorial Supplies 

Waste Removal 

Security System 

Licenses 

Gas 

Electricity 

Total B & G Expenses 

Postage Meter Expenses 

Gallery Portion of expenses 

Meter Rental 

Postage 

Total Postage Meter Expenses 

Photocopier Expenses 

Mueseum Portion of Expenses 

Gallery Portion of expenses 

Copier Lease 

Total Photocopier Expenses 

Special Projects exp 

Theatre Scho!>I!Camps 

Take Your Seat Program 

Total Special Projects exp 

Bar/Concession 

Bar Manager/Casual 

Bar Supplies/License 

Bar/Concession - 01her 

Total Bar/Concession 

ACTUALS Jui- Dec 12 

100.00 

2.024.75 

4.089.00 

4.048.19 

704.95 

-176.00 

43.718.01 

1.498.04 

16.924.87 

56.65 

23.81 

521.79 

1.250.33 

122.30 

1.197.75 

1.016.26 

203.00 

5,952.79 

5.408.54 

34,176.13 

-358.85 

654.89 

1,852.10 

2,148.14 

·321.78 

·2,350.44 

1,397.53 

-1,274.69 

126.87 

500.00 

626.87 

526.22 

1,863.42 

-81 .62 

2.308.02 

Total Expense 280,704.29 

Net Income 42,100.37 

BUDGET 

275 

2,250 

6,000 

86,517 

1.000 

152.292 

1,200 

33,848 

0 

500 

750 

500 

1,000 

2.250 

500 

1,000 

11,000 

7,500 

60.048 

775 

6,000 

6,775 

6,000 

6.000 

500 

500 

1.000 

1,875 

2.972 

4,847 

604.454 

0 
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